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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to today's oversight hearing on the

          4  proposed privatization of the Brooklyn Central

          5  Laundry. I, as Chair of this Committee, and the

          6  Council as a whole, are very concerned whenever

          7  there is a threat of privatization by the

          8  Administration or any Administration, especially

          9  when the loss of jobs are at stake.

         10                 Previous proposed privatization of

         11  Coney Island Hospital is only one example. Today we

         12  will hear from the different unions involved.

         13                 Let me for the record also say that

         14  the Administration and the Health and Hospitals

         15  Corporation were invited to testify today but they

         16  have declined to come before this Committee today.

         17                 Having said that, let me first

         18  acknowledge, and also so you will understand that

         19  while this hearing is taking place, there are other

         20  hearings that are similarly taking place. I know

         21  Environmental Protection is in the next room, which

         22  I am a member of, but if you see members come and go

         23  it is because today the Mayor submitted a budget

         24  plan for the Fiscal Year 2000 and I know that the

         25  Speaker right now is having a press conference,
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          2  where I should be at, and I am excused to be here

          3  because his commitment, and as you know, this is why

          4  we are having this hearing, at his request after I

          5  believe discussion with your leadership.

          6                 Let me acknowledge also my colleagues

          7  who are here and are members of this Committee, and

          8  then as members come in, in between when I get a

          9  chance, I will introduce them.

         10                 First let me introduce Council Member

         11  Pedro Espada from the Bronx. Let me also introduce

         12  the distinguished colleague and sister from Brooklyn

         13  who not only represents Kings County Hospital but is

         14  the Chair of the Subcommittee of Mental Health,

         15  Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services, that is

         16  a committee, subcommittee under this Committee,

         17  Council Member Una Clarke, and of course, my counsel

         18  to my Committee, Jose Orengo.

         19                 Let me as a courtesy, because if I

         20  don't, I won't hear the end of it, turn to my

         21  distinguished colleague, who has I said, decides her

         22  own position, not only being the member of this

         23  Committee but being the Chair of the Subcommittee,

         24  but who physically represents Kings County Hospital,

         25  Council Member Una Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 I have been involved with a number of

          5  the officials from the 40th, in strategizing around

          6  the issue of maintaining those jobs in my community

          7  in particular, but just to look at, first of all,

          8  were those jobs being transferred to emerging

          9  nations or third world nations everybody would say

         10  shame on you for sending our jobs away at 3.25 an

         11  hour when we have them go across state lines in

         12  order to undercut organized labor, then we don't say

         13  shame on you, and I think the whole issue of

         14  privatization has to be an issue of bread and

         15  butter, can people continue to have a decent life,

         16  can they educate their children, can they pay their

         17  rent at the wages that they will earn?

         18                 So our community is united, I am

         19  coming late because this morning I met with all the

         20  ministers in the 40th District to let them know what

         21  this trouble is going to be about and to let them

         22  know that together we have to stand as a community,

         23  otherwise we will fall apart as a community and then

         24  later on everybody is going to walk through the

         25  neighborhood and say, now look at it, if people are
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          2  not working, they can't have homes, they can't

          3  educate their children, and I think to privatize and

          4  to look for what would, if it went to a third world

          5  nation would be called cheap labor, when it is in

          6  North America it is called privatizing and we won't

          7  stand for it. So, I am coming here as a member of

          8  the community from whose community these jobs will

          9  be taken. I come as somebody who has lived in that

         10  neighborhood for 35 years, everything I own,

         11  everything I have had since I come to North America

         12  is in that neighborhood, so I am vested in that

         13  community and together, Mr. Chairman, I know that

         14  you don't take on a giant that you can't beat,

         15  because I know you're little David and we are going

         16  to go after Goliath and we have to win, and so I

         17  thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say that

         19  while I have met him at the State of the City

         20  message that the Mayor introduced, I also this

         21  morning had a chance to be personally introduced to

         22  him.

         23                 Let me begin then these hearings by

         24  welcoming the Administrator of District Council 37

         25  AFSCME, AFL-CIO, the Administrator, Lee Saunders.
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          2                 May I ask you to, for the record, and

          3  for those who will come to the table to testify --

          4  interesting hearing -- we used to have

          5  stenographers, they are not there no more. We now

          6  use records and tape, somehow they got snuck through

          7  privatization, that was before I became Chairman of

          8  this Committee, let me get the record straight, so I

          9  respectfully ask that you talk directly into the

         10  mic, and Mr. Saunders, would you identify yourself

         11  for the record, and also if you would be so kind to

         12  introduce the people with you, and then as we move

         13  along, whoever is speaking, please identify yourself

         14  for the record, because we don't have the

         15  stenographer and we need to know who is talking.

         16                 Having said that, again, the

         17  Administrator, on behalf of Speaker Vallone, and all

         18  of the members of the Council, in particular as

         19  Chairman which I am privileged to preside over this

         20  Committee and the members, one, congratulations on

         21  your appointment to make this union and DC 37 what I

         22  started out with knowing and respecting and it has

         23  given too much to the people of New York City and

         24  the City to allow whatever it may be to divide and

         25  destroy a union that many of us would clearly say
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          2  represents the best of New York City, because you

          3  are New York City.

          4                 So, on behalf of again the Speaker

          5  and everyone else, welcome to City Hall.

          6                 MR. SAUNDERS: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman, and distinguished members of the

          8  Committee. I especially appreciate those comments

          9  from Councilwoman Clarke. We look forward to her

         10  help and support and she has been a soldier with

         11  District Council 37 for a long, long time.

         12                 My name is Lee Saunders, I am the

         13  Administrator of District Council 37 of the American

         14  Federation of state, county and municipal employees,

         15  AFL-CIO.

         16                 I am here today on behalf of the

         17  125,000 members of DC 37 to express the Union's

         18  opposition to HHC contracting the work of Brooklyn

         19  Central Laundry to Angelica Textile Services. This

         20  contract is a bad idea and does not make sense, you

         21  will hear a lot of reasons why today.

         22                 I am here to tell you this contract

         23  is just plain bad public policy.

         24                 HHC tells us they are contracting out

         25  the laundry work to save money, to reduce their

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  expenses and to avoid much needed capital

          3  investment.

          4                 HHC has contracted with a company

          5  with neither a single plant in New York City, nor

          6  the capacity in any one plant to handle HHC's 16

          7  million pounds of laundry.

          8                 Central Brooklyn will lose 200

          9  unionized entry level jobs, and HHC's laundry will

         10  be traveling all over the eastern seaboard.

         11                 HHC did not reach out to the union to

         12  discuss how to collaborate on a more effective

         13  laundry service. We think that with new equipment

         14  the laundry can lower cost and even take in more

         15  business.

         16                 Instead, HHC sought a contractor

         17  because the laundry has been on HHC's hit list for a

         18  number of years, and HHC has to reduce expenses.

         19                 HHC repeatedly makes a logical and

         20  irresponsible management choices because they are

         21  forced to reduce spending.

         22                 The City abdicated its financial

         23  responsibility for HHC years ago. The tax levy

         24  subsidy has been eliminated, the City no longer

         25  funds collective bargaining increases they
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          2  negotiate. HHC no longer receives adequate funds to

          3  maintain and modernize its infrastructure. This

          4  becomes a self-fulfilling prophecy for

          5  privatization.

          6                 While HHC has succeeded in reducing

          7  length of stay in ER visits, they have failed to

          8  retain enough insured patients to subsidize the

          9  costs of health care for the uninsured. There are

         10  increasing numbers of uninsured in New York City,

         11  and they use HHC for their care.

         12                 New York City needs an effective

         13  public health care delivery system for the growing

         14  number of New York City families who need care

         15  regardless of ability to pay.

         16                 The contracting out of Brooklyn

         17  Central Laundry is bad policy for more than public

         18  health care reasons. This is outrageous from an

         19  economic policy perspective, closing down Brooklyn

         20  Central Laundry will mean a loss of 200 entry level

         21  jobs in Central Brooklyn, the City's unemployment

         22  rate of 7.8 percent compared to 4.6 percent

         23  nationally. In Brooklyn it is 9.4 percent, more than

         24  twice the national average.

         25                 The City is unable to place workfare
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          2  participants in real jobs. In spite of years of

          3  economic expansion, significant portions of newly

          4  created jobs in the City have been in sectors that

          5  do not have a lot of entry level jobs and have

          6  repeatedly gone to non-City residents.

          7                 Just last week Councilman Sabini

          8  reported on a study that found that only ten percent

          9  of 155 non-human services contracts awarded by the

         10  City's Office of Contracts went to firms in the

         11  outer boroughs. Over a third went to firms outside

         12  the City.

         13                 The Angelica Contract is part of that

         14  trend. Angelica, headquartered near St. Louis,

         15  Missouri, will be using its Edison, New Jersey Plant

         16  as the primary site to handle HHC's laundry, with

         17  plants near Albany, Philadelphia and Boston as back

         18  up.

         19                 Not only do they take the outrageous

         20  step of contracting with an out-of-city firm, but

         21  also they contract with one that cannot handle all

         22  of the work in one location.

         23                 Our estimate of the impact of the

         24  loss of these jobs has several dimensions. First,

         25  Brooklyn Central Laundry jobs are good public sector
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          2  jobs with reasonable rates of pay, good benefits and

          3  union representation.

          4                 The laundry operates two shifts six

          5  days a week and handles 16 million pounds of laundry

          6  a year. Most of the workers at Brooklyn Central

          7  Laundry live in New York City, primarily in

          8  Brooklyn. It is bad economic policy for this City to

          9  promote jobs leaving New York City. The loss of

         10  these jobs will potentially cost New York City $10

         11  million in spending and taxes for the local economy.

         12                 The logistical problems of the

         13  Angelica Contract is a prescription for disaster,

         14  arising from laundry not be delivered on time and

         15  from infectious waste, meaning blood-soaked sheets,

         16  being transported on interstate highways and busy

         17  thoroughfares.

         18                 As for the 200 plus laundry workers

         19  themselves, HHC has no concrete plans to find other

         20  jobs for them in the system.

         21                 I need not point out that there are

         22  no other laundry jobs in HHC. The workers will have

         23  to be retrained to move into other HHC jobs, but

         24  they worry. They worry, and rightly so, that they

         25  are the next on the layoff list.
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          2                 We will continue to exercise our

          3  rights under our collective bargaining agreement, as

          4  well as under applicable law to resolve our

          5  concerns. Nevertheless, contracting out to Brooklyn

          6  Central Laundry is just plain bad public policy, and

          7  as a representative of the public, the City Council

          8  must stop this contract.

          9                 HHC claims the contract will save

         10  money, however the bottom line should not be the

         11  only determining factor.

         12                 How do we put a price tag on sterile

         13  sheets and uniforms arriving on time?

         14                 If Angelica's delivery trucks do not

         15  arrive at the hospitals, how will that affect the

         16  quality of care for patients?

         17                 HHC's need to save money is driven by

         18  this Administration's unwillingness to fund health

         19  care for the uninsured. The City Council, labor

         20  unions and community groups have argued that the

         21  City has an obligation under law to subsidize HHC's

         22  services. But the Mayor's response is that he wants

         23  to get out of the business of delivering health

         24  care, he has eliminated the tax levy subsidy,

         25  attempted to privatize, forced the closure of beds
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          2  and the layoff of hospital workers.

          3                 To all of us here today, and to the

          4  tens of thousands of union members we represent, the

          5  Angelica contract makes no sense. It makes no sense

          6  whatsoever. It is unnecessarily destructive, of

          7  jobs, of efficient hospital operation, of economic

          8  activity, and yes, of lives.

          9                 I urge the Council to stand firm

         10  against the contracting out of Brooklyn Central

         11  Laundry and to stand up to the 200 hard working

         12  women and men City workers who served this City

         13  well. They do the tough jobs. They do the tough jobs

         14  that keep all public hospitals operating in the

         15  public interest.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also,

         18  before we move on, introduce the members who have

         19  joined us. First, let me begin with the members of

         20  the Committee. I see that my distinguished colleague

         21  from queens, Council Member Julia Harrison, has

         22  joined us. I also see the distinguished chair of our

         23  Council's Government Operations Committee, and also

         24  from Brooklyn, Council Member Mary Pinkett.

         25                 I see that a new colleague, from
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          2  Brooklyn also, has joined us, Council Member Tracy

          3  Boyland.

          4                 Are we going to have everyone speak,

          5  or how are we going to do this now?

          6                 MR. SAUNDERS: It's your choice. If

          7  you would like to ask me questions now or wait until

          8  the speakers have concluded their remarks?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't we do

         10  that, in fairness to those who are there. Would you

         11  just identify yourself for the record and then

         12  begin.

         13                 MS. DEBOER: My name is Louise Deboer,

         14  I am the Recording Secretary of Local 420.

         15                 Good afternoon, Chairman Robles and

         16  former Council members. I am standing in for my

         17  president who is under the weather, so I will

         18  attempt to try to give you the words that he would

         19  say.

         20                 Of course you know James Butler is

         21  the person at the Local 420 Municipal Hospitals

         22  Employees Union, that is District Council 37,

         23  AFSCME, AFL-CIO. We represent 11,000 public hospital

         24  workers and 200 laundry workers at Brooklyn Central

         25  Laundry.
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          2                 I am here to tell you that Mayor

          3  Giuliani is at it again. He is gassing up his

          4  privatization steamroller again to roll over our

          5  public and community hospitals.

          6                 The mission of New York City's Health

          7  and Hospital Corporation, the largest system in the

          8  world, is to provide needed health care, regardless

          9  of ability to pay for millions of uninsured and

         10  underinsured New Yorkers, including seniors and

         11  children. But HHC seems to have abandoned its duty,

         12  for years our union has fought against the Mayor and

         13  his attempt at privatizing public hospitals and/or

         14  contracting out what we have won.

         15                 Last year Local 420 joined with the

         16  Coalition of Labor, health care, political and

         17  community organization and successfully fought back

         18  against the Mayor's attempt to sell Coney Island

         19  Hospital.

         20                 Then the Mayor tried to privatize

         21  through the back door by allowing HHC to contract

         22  out our several employee cafeteria, fastfood

         23  establishments like McDonalds. Fastfood restaurants

         24  and hospitals, however, just do not fit,

         25  particularly when one of the main courses of a poor
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          2  diet and health can be attributed to the fastfood we

          3  consume.

          4                 Thankfully the restaurants haven't

          5  caught on. One failed and others are floundering, it

          6  doesn't stop there. The Mayor last year, Mayor

          7  Giuliani terminated 600 public hospital workers,

          8  more than 250 from Harlem Hospital, from a system

          9  already in critical condition and rapidly fading

         10  under the weight of severe staff shortages and

         11  budget cuts.

         12                 We have been fighting back every cent

         13  with positive gains to get people back on the job.

         14  The Mayor used his trademark, bullying techniques,

         15  to allow one hospital, Neponsit Home and Health Care

         16  Center in the Rockaways, to be abruptly shut down,

         17  forcing the evacuation of over 300 long-term care

         18  patients, mostly the elderly and special needs

         19  populations were without notice, uprooted in the

         20  dead of night and forced out, taken with then what

         21  little they had to gather from the only place they

         22  know as home. Scattered about with their

         23  possessions, these patients and the 250 workers who

         24  cared for them are faced with the possibility of

         25  never being allowed to return to Neponsit because
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          2  the City wants to sell the valuable real estate and

          3  the hospital sits on it.

          4                 We are fighting the Mayor on this

          5  too, because he doesn't have a compassionate heart

          6  and he obviously doesn't care about less fortunate

          7  and the access to decent health care.

          8                 Now the Mayor has positioned the old

          9  steamroller again, this time aiming at Brooklyn

         10  Central Laundry.

         11                 Brooklyn Central Laundry is located

         12  in the heart of Brooklyn, bordered to East New York

         13  Crown Heights neighborhood, directly behind Kings

         14  County Hospital, at 645 Kingston Avenue.

         15                 The laundry provides services for the

         16  entire HHC network of 11 acute care facilities, six

         17  long-term care centers, six diagnostic and treatment

         18  centers and satellite and the Chief Medical

         19  Examiner's Office. With about 200 workers, the

         20  laundry handles more than 16 million pounds of

         21  blood-soaked contaminated linen, uniforms, baby

         22  garments a year, including sorting, transporting,

         23  weighting, drying and folding the laundry.

         24                 For over 20 years, regardless of the

         25  volume, disease or safety hazards, workers at
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          2  Brooklyn Central Laundry have taken in soiled linen,

          3  hospital linen six days a week and returned it to

          4  the facilities within 24 to 48 hours.

          5                 The workers are dedicated and provide

          6  a valuable service, are vast experts of the job they

          7  do, but now they are in the way of the Giuliani

          8  privatization steamroller, and this time he is going

          9  for a direct hit.

         10                 The City announces on January 6th

         11  that they are going to sell the laundry to a well

         12  known company called Angelica, Inc., a company that

         13  is no angel when it comes to providing service,

         14  treating its workers fairly. Angelica headquarters

         15  is in St. Louis, Missouri, with branches in Edison,

         16  New Jersey, Boston, Albany, New York, Philadelphia,

         17  Pennsylvania, has a horrendous labor track record

         18  and pays some employees a piece work rate that are

         19  below minimum wages.

         20                 In 1997, workers at two plants in

         21  Missouri went on strike for six months after the

         22  company wanted to pay exuberant amounts for health

         23  care coverages. These were workers whose take home

         24  pay averaged $100 a week, and they were told to pay

         25  $189 for health coverage. Sadly, there wasn't a
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          2  happy ending. One of the plants closed down and 160

          3  workers lost their jobs.

          4                 Angelica hasn't shown a profit

          5  either. They closed several plants in 1997 and were

          6  deemed unprofitable. Their corporate structure is

          7  unstable, with a revolving door corporate board

          8  management, and according to Dunn and Bradstreet

          9  analysis their major financial indicators are below

         10  industry standards. Why HHC would want to do

         11  business with a company like that is very puzzling.

         12                 If we have to fight back. If we allow

         13  the laundry to be sold, we are allowing the Mayor to

         14  come in and strip away a vital part of our Brooklyn

         15  community.

         16                 The 200 mostly African-American,

         17  Caribbean, Hispanic workers at Brooklyn Central

         18  Laundry are your neighbors. They not only work in

         19  the community, they support the community and they

         20  live in the community. They help sustain local

         21  businesses with their dollars, send their children

         22  to the schools and are active in the PTA and the

         23  neighborhood improvement associations.

         24                 When they or their loved ones are

         25  sick, they go to their family doctor located in the
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          2  community and Kings County Hospital. They are

          3  concerned residents sitting next to you at the

          4  community hearings, demanding more police on the

          5  street, a new street light at a dangerous

          6  intersection, they are an active part of this

          7  community, and I shudder to think what negative

          8  impact will be on this thriving community if the

          9  laundry is sold and workers are laid off or forced

         10  to go to New Jersey to work.

         11                 What also troubles me greatly is the

         12  impact this sale has on the quality of service that

         13  these workers perform each work day. Brooklyn

         14  Central Laundry workers constantly face a multitude

         15  of the most serious safety and health hazards

         16  imaginable. It is not uncommon for workers to sort

         17  operating room linen that is blood soaked, the

         18  possibility of contaminated with HIV, hepatitis,

         19  littered with needles, and sometimes even containing

         20  body parts. But the workers at the laundry are well

         21  trained. They take necessary precautions to stay

         22  safe. All that can be pushed aside of Angelica takes

         23  over. But to Angelica, a goal of safety and health

         24  are secondary.

         25                 As I stated earlier, Angelica plants
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          2  are not located in New York City, but in Boston,

          3  Philadelphia, Edison, New Jersey, Albany, New York.

          4  Laundry will be sent more than likely to Albany,

          5  which is 140 miles away, one way. Can you imagine

          6  what it would be two ways? I would like to see how

          7  they are going to pull getting soiled linen cleaned

          8  and delivered back to the hospitals in a 24 to 48

          9  your turnaround.

         10                 Besides, what the justification in

         11  sending linen out of the City, across the George

         12  Washington Bridge to Edison, across Tapanzee Bridge

         13  to Albany? I know the Mayor wants to ship our

         14  garbage to other states and cities, but our laundry

         15  and jobs too? Also, has the Mayor and HHC officials

         16  given thought to the obvious dangers to our

         17  communities and surrounding counties if contaminated

         18  material fall out of the back of the Angelica truck?

         19                 Angelica has a questionable record in

         20  quality of service. I am afraid the quality will

         21  become compromised when they feel the apparent

         22  pressure of delivering clean linen on time to

         23  hospitals and clinics. This will have a terrible

         24  impact on patients and staff.

         25                 Linen not delivered on time, and
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          2  worse, not cleaned properly or fully would be a

          3  disaster in the making.

          4                 Can you imagine visiting a loved one

          5  in the hospital and seeing the housekeeping aid

          6  replaced a soiled sheet on the bed on another soiled

          7  sheet?

          8                 Well, if we put our faith in the

          9  hands of Angelica, don't be surprised. It is quite

         10  obvious that Mayor Giuliani isn't concerned with

         11  maintaining our public hospital system. What is

         12  needed is a transfusion of dollars, not

         13  bloodletting. These days the Mayor is consumed with

         14  spending billions of our dollars building more brand

         15  new stadiums, including plans to move a perfectly

         16  sound structure, Madison Square Garden, ten blocks

         17  to the West Side of Manhattan because it fits with

         18  his elaborate plan. But the worker in Brooklyn

         19  Central Laundry are average people, they have mouths

         20  to feed and rent to pay and they love the job they

         21  do. They have an excellent service record, and

         22  deliver top notch product to facilities.

         23                 So, I ask the Mayor, why soil a good

         24  thing, especially when it doesn't need a cleaning?

         25  Privatizing Brooklyn Laundry is not cost-effective,
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          2  operationally sound or hygienically safe. This

          3  foolhardy attempt to send the laundry to Angelica is

          4  a prescription for disaster. For the good health of

          5  all New Yorkers we must work together and stop this

          6  from happening.

          7                 I want to thank the Committee

          8  Chairman Robles and the Committee for all of your

          9  help. We at Local 420 are already on the front line

         10  in the fight to save Brooklyn Laundry and we welcome

         11  your support. We would like to thank you so very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Let me just, before I call on the

         16  next person, let me say that while you said he is

         17  recuperating, my understanding is that -- and please

         18  convey on behalf of the Speaker and all of my

         19  colleagues to Jim Butler that our prayers are with

         20  him so that he can have a speedy recovery, knowing

         21  how spunky he is when he comes to these hearings,

         22  tell him that we all missed him.

         23                 MS. DEBOER: All right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You did a good

         25  job but there is something about Jim Butler --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 MS. DEBOER: I could never take his

          3  place.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: One day is

          5  chains, one day is handcuffs, but let him know that

          6  our prayers are with him and that we are eagerly

          7  awaiting him to come before not only this Committee,

          8  but committees like he does, because there is

          9  something special about Jim Butler.

         10                 Who is next?

         11                 MS. GREEN: Good afternoon. To

         12  Councilman Robles and members of the City Council,

         13  my name is Helen Green, I am the President of Local

         14  768 Health Services Employees, and I am also the

         15  Secretary of District Council 37, AFSCME, AFL-CIO.

         16                 I represent over 4,000 professional

         17  and technical allied health workers in Local 768,

         18  and approximately 1,720 of whom worked in the HHC,

         19  as social workers, dental assistants, medical record

         20  specialists and physicians assistants among many,

         21  many more which are too numerous to mention here

         22  this afternoon.

         23                 I am here today to express the

         24  opposition of my local to the contracting out of

         25  Brooklyn Central Laundry, and certainly I do not
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          2  have members who work at this location, but in

          3  support of a sister union that is my position and

          4  the reason I am here this afternoon. Because an

          5  injury to one of us is certainly an injury to all of

          6  us.

          7                 The current laundry operation works

          8  well. Clean, sterile linen and uniforms get where

          9  they need to be on time. The proposed contractor may

         10  do the work more cheaply by one set of calculations,

         11  but it sounds like an overly complicated plan full

         12  of a lot of risk that could end up costing HHC money

         13  and causing its facilities to function less

         14  effectively. Day in and day out my members have to

         15  cope with management decisions that undermines

         16  workers effectiveness and morale. Steady reduction

         17  in staff and regular changes in procedures make it

         18  hard to care for patients effectively.

         19                 HHC cannot afford support services

         20  that do not work right. Our patients have a right to

         21  expect the highest quality of care. My local will

         22  not sit idly by while HHC is privatized away. HHC

         23  should abandon this foolish plan, invest in new

         24  laundry equipment, keep the Brooklyn Central Laundry

         25  in Brooklyn and get about the business of good
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          2  patient care.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Would

          5  you identify yourself for the record, please.

          6                 MR. WHITE: My name is Eulie White,

          7  Jr., I am the Chairperson of Brooklyn Central

          8  Laundry, Local 420.

          9                 I have been working at Brooklyn

         10  Central Laundry for 25 years. I know the whole

         11  procedure. I know the whole ordeal about Brooklyn

         12  Central Laundry. If you in the future have any

         13  questions, you can ask me, I can answer them all

         14  without holding a punch and without pulling any

         15  punches.

         16                 Let me tell you all something, and

         17  let me explain carefully, this laundry is not just a

         18  laundry. This laundry don't deal in soiled linen, we

         19  don't deal in prime linen, we deal in contaminated

         20  linen.

         21                 Contaminated linen means a danger to

         22  your health. We at Brooklyn Central Laundry, each

         23  and every day, put our lives on the line so that the

         24  people that lay in the beds in the hospital can have

         25  clean and sterile linen.
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          2                 We receive at Brooklyn Central

          3  Laundry, body parts, all kinds of body parts, sheets

          4  so bloody that they got odors coming from them. It's

          5  good for you to get a clear picture of what we are

          6  dealing with.

          7                 Let me tell you, you do not take a

          8  virus that you got under control in one house and

          9  spread it all over the country. But if you have got

         10  a virus under control, you keep it there. Because if

         11  you start spreading a virus, you plan on killing

         12  other people, and I don't think -- there is no way

         13  in the world you on that committee can justify a

         14  means of destroying other human life by taking and

         15  agreeing with this plan they got with the Health and

         16  Hospital Corporation to contract out this linen, to

         17  travel all over this country, to deliver it to

         18  different places, split it up, ship it here, ship it

         19  there. One of them trucks breaks down on the

         20  highway, the truck door opens up, the linen goes

         21  into the air population, you got a plague, you have

         22  to make a decision, who is going to pay the bill for

         23  them lives.

         24                 This job that we do at Brooklyn

         25  Central Laundry, we are dedicated. We had one
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          2  gentleman on the job, he was working, he dropped

          3  dead on the job so that he could provide the linen

          4  service that go to the hospital. He died right there

          5  in front of his co-workers, he had a massive heart

          6  attack and everything, by working to get the sheets

          7  out.

          8                 Because when you are on a job, you

          9  are on a job more than you are at home. Your job is

         10  your home also. The people on the job is your

         11  family, understand?

         12                 We had an incident one summer,

         13  believe this, it is not no easy job in the

         14  summertime. It may be 85 outside, it's 110 inside.

         15  But we don't stop. We had a fire on the third floor,

         16  burn't up the third floor where we sort all the

         17  linen out, what we did, we carried it up to the

         18  second floor, put it in the machines and let it be

         19  processed to get out so the hospital could still

         20  have their linen on time. We didn't miss a day, we

         21  didn't miss a moment, we delivered. We don't give no

         22  excuses, we deliver the linen.

         23                 Let me break this down. The City must

         24  have gotten scared to come here today because let me

         25  tell you, I am going to break it down slowly and
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          2  easy so that everyone can understand.

          3                 When you go to another company to get

          4  your linen or your business, you investigate it for

          5  the following year, so that means you investigate it

          6  for 1997. All right, you go 1997 to Angelica,

          7  Angelica in 1997 went on strike for six months. They

          8  were paying workers at Angelica that were working

          9  there 14 years, $3.95 an hour. Workers that worked

         10  there 20 years were making $5.00 an hour. Some

         11  workers working there were going home with $200

         12  every two weeks and had to pay $189 of health

         13  insurance - what kind of a company is this?

         14                 All right, they talk about they went

         15  out and looked at this place. All right, I had a

         16  meeting with the City and the Health and Hospitals

         17  corporation last week. I boxed them into a situation

         18  to a question and answer period. I asked the ones

         19  that went out there to investigate the place, you

         20  have seen Angelica on site, do you think they can

         21  handle the work of Brooklyn Central Laundry? The

         22  question, the answer, the answer was no. So if you

         23  answered no, then why are you sending it there if

         24  they can't handle the tonnage and the weight that we

         25  handle at Brooklyn Central Laundry.
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          2                 Then I asked them, you have to also

          3  get a reference letter, a reference letter to go for

          4  five years back from a company that you dealt with

          5  that says that you had handled this much, this much

          6  tonnage, this much pounds, this much weight, this

          7  much quality of Brooklyn Central Laundry; do you

          8  have this letter? He told me he got a letter that

          9  they had to clean linen. I don't need no clean

         10  linen, I want you to tell me or show me a letter,

         11  that you got a reference letter saying you have

         12  handled this much linen that falls under the title

         13  of Health and Hospitals Corporation. He told me they

         14  do not have this letter.

         15                 So if you don't have a reference

         16  letter stating that you can handle this, or this

         17  company can handle this, why are you sending to this

         18  company? Now, that is 1997. We are going to update

         19  to 1998.

         20                 Now in 1998 they state that they are

         21  going to franchise out to Boston. Well, big

         22  surprise, Boston plant is getting ready to close

         23  too. So they cannot use the Boston plant.

         24                 They just lost in New Jersey Medical

         25  Capital, Medical Center, two companies in Jersey,
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          2  they just lost it, because they were filing false

          3  service papers, they lost that. Yale, they lost

          4  that. They have been losing business. So, if you are

          5  going to give our business to a company that is a

          6  high risk, why are we dealing with this. If you are

          7  going to check a company, you have to check it

          8  thoroughly, financially, and every other kind of

          9  way. So, you are trying to tell me Health and

         10  Hospitals Corporation did this? If they did this,

         11  this company's bid is supposed to be off the table.

         12                 That is why Health and Hospitals

         13  Corporation is not here, because I am telling you

         14  the truth, and they will come here and tell you a

         15  bald-faced lie. Do you understand? Because it is

         16  serious.

         17                 If you take this linen and you start

         18  traveling over this country, who is going to be

         19  responsible for the lives that are going to be lost?

         20  Who is going to put a price tag on that little kid

         21  if their momma come home and talks about I don't

         22  know what kind of linen I did, but I brought the

         23  disease home to you.

         24                 If you were in a hotel room, in a

         25  hotel room sharing that bed, and you get stuck with
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          2  a needle, how do you know where that needle came

          3  from? But at Brooklyn Central Laundry we know.

          4  Everything that comes in there we know. We know what

          5  hospital, we know what's in there, we know how to

          6  get treated. And up to the day anybody that uses and

          7  takes this linen and deals with a hotel firm must,

          8  must contact every firm that they deal with and tell

          9  them they no longer are doing prime linen, they no

         10  longer are dealing in soiled linen, they are dealing

         11  with contaminated linen and their linen must be

         12  labeled the same way. There is no question about

         13  this, you are taking death on the road. If we are

         14  going to deliver death, then we are going to be

         15  delivering its death to each and everybody we pass

         16  on the highway, that linen at Brooklyn Central

         17  Laundry should stay there because the workers there

         18  are qualified and bonafide. They know their job,

         19  they know how to deal with it, they know how to

         20  separate it, they know how to send it away. They

         21  know how to put it in a container with a biological

         22  waste product. We handle that too, and we ship it

         23  out. We know how to separate it out. We do the

         24  doctors' coats. Every doctor you see walking around

         25  that hospital with pressed coats, we do it. We go in
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          2  their pockets and find the needles before they get

          3  their coats back, so they don't have the needles.

          4  You understand? We got a department that takes care

          5  of that all alone.

          6                 We fold stuff, we send it back

          7  neatly. There is no reason for them to want to send

          8  it to Angelica who is a high risk, and if somebody

          9  breaks it down, they are getting paid underneath the

         10  table, okay?

         11                 But the bottom line, we must stand

         12  together as one body and one understanding in mind,

         13  that life is important, services is important and if

         14  we do the best, we are the best, there is nobody

         15  else to compare to us. So we leave the service right

         16  where it is at. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me, before I

         18  go into questions, why don't we just, before we go

         19  into questions, why don't we again introduce members

         20  who have joined us.

         21                 I see Council Member Phil Reed, who

         22  is a member of this Committee, represents parts of

         23  Manhattan, parts of the Bronx, but our dear

         24  colleague on this Committee.

         25                 First, let me thank you, all those
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          2  who have joined us, let me perhaps ask the question

          3  and then I will open it up to my colleagues and let

          4  me remind my colleagues that while we welcome the

          5  dialogue, I see there is a long list of people who

          6  are patiently also wanting to testify, so let's try

          7  to limit ourselves so we can allow and hear everyone

          8  on this issue.

          9                 Mr. Saunders, since you are the

         10  Administrator, or anyone who can answer, let me just

         11  perhaps set the record straight as we move ahead.

         12                 It is my understanding that in 1995 a

         13  report was issued by the Health and Hospitals

         14  Corporation that was prepared by a Victor Kremmer

         15  and Company and it was entitled Alternatives for

         16  Future Laundry Linen Services. And that report

         17  included that the Brooklyn Central Laundry has the

         18  capacity, the capability of operating efficiently

         19  and economically serving its customers, hospitals

         20  and other health care facilities. That is what the

         21  report said.

         22                 MR. SAUNDERS: Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Are you aware of

         24  that?

         25                 MR. SAUNDERS: Yes, I am.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And then I am

          3  assuming that you agree with the report?

          4                 MR. SAUNDERS: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          6                 Now, it went on to say that to the

          7  best of their knowledge, or at least the best of

          8  knowledge that, what was HHC's official response to

          9  the report that they asked to have done?

         10                 MR. SAUNDERS: They did absolutely

         11  nothing. As a matter of fact, I believe the report

         12  also suggested that the equipment be changed and be

         13  modernized and they ignored those kinds of

         14  recommendations. So, HHC actually did nothing.

         15                 And let me just say this, too, and I

         16  think this is important to say. It's unfortunate to

         17  say. You have an organization in HHC which

         18  supposedly should be an advocate for the public

         19  health care delivery system in New York City.

         20                 I have got to say this, and I will

         21  say this publicly, I am saying it to you, they are

         22  not advocates for a public health care delivery

         23  system in this City. They are more interested in

         24  tearing it apart and tearing it down, rather than

         25  developing appropriate programs and plans and
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          2  restructuring to make it a viable and strong system,

          3  and that is just completely wrong.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also ask a

          5  last question, and then I will turn it over.

          6                 The report specifically stated that

          7  HHC can reduce its cost of 7.34 million annually by

          8  continuing to operate the Brooklyn Central Laundry,

          9  and by implementing the recommendations contained in

         10  this report which you elaborated. So, I am assuming

         11  that based upon the report that again you agree with

         12  the report that if what was recommended and

         13  implemented, then HHC could have reduced its cost of

         14  $7.3 million as the report says; is that fair to

         15  say?

         16                 MR. SAUNDERS: That's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And then the last

         18  thing is, because I want to start with the records,

         19  and I need you to, perhaps as the gentleman said, be

         20  honest and blunt and put it out on the table.

         21                 MR. SAUNDERS: We can do that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, let me back

         23  up for a second so that all of our colleagues know.

         24                 First of all, this operation, the

         25  Brooklyn Central Laundry, does the following: it
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          2  receives laundry from 11 HHC acute care hospitals;

          3  is that correct?

          4                 MR. WHITE: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It also serves

          6  long-term care facilities; that is correct?

          7                 MR. WHITE: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It also serves

          9  the diagnostic centers and the Office of the Medical

         10  Examiner of the City?

         11                 MR. WHITE: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It also handles

         13  over 16 million pounds of laundry each year.

         14                 MR. WHITE: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, this

         16  contract, or at least this RFP, says the following:

         17                 Although the cost to HHC allegedly is

         18  $11 million to operate, that's what they are saying,

         19  they are also saying that 10 million is in labor

         20  cost, and 1 million on plant maintenance.

         21                 The RFP or this so-called contract,

         22  says that Angelica can provide the same services for

         23  $5.5 million. You don't have to agree with me, I

         24  just want to set the record straight. It's not a

         25  cheering, I just want to set it straight. And it
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          2  allegedly says that because of this that it will

          3  save HHC $6.5 million.

          4                 Would you like to elaborate on the

          5  cost saving, and based upon what was said, perhaps

          6  enlighten us how that is not the truth.

          7                 MR. SAUNDERS: I would just say that I

          8  don't believe that HHC, nor Angelica, understand the

          9  operation of the laundry, and I think that HHC just

         10  has no idea on how much money, if in fact any money

         11  will be saved based upon the proposal that Angelica

         12  has provided to HHC.

         13                 I think that you have got to look at

         14  a number of factors involved in that RFP.

         15                 You have got to look at what angelica

         16  has performed, what kinds of services they performed

         17  in the past. Their capabilities to perform, what is

         18  actually being performed by our members in Local

         19  420, those laundry workers right now. I think that

         20  you have got to look at their working practices and

         21  their relationships with either the unions or the

         22  employees that work for Angelica. You add all of

         23  those factors together, their lack of experience in

         24  this area, the relationships that they have with

         25  their employees, the safety and health violations
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          2  that exist in other plants of Angelica across the

          3  country, and I think it's a bad deal. It's a bad

          4  deal for New York City, it's a bad deal for HHC, and

          5  it's something that the City Council has really got

          6  to pay attention to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me then call

          8  upon the following Council members, you know the

          9  order. And what I will do, my colleagues, again, I

         10  repeat, I will call you and keep in mind that we

         11  have a whole list of people who would like to

         12  testify. And let me also acknowledge that I see a

         13  lot of dear friends of all of us, especially

         14  presidents of unions that have come to other

         15  committees, and there are no shrinking violets, and

         16  while I am not going to get into naming names, I

         17  want you to know that this Chair and this Committee

         18  and this Council recognizes the unity of strength

         19  when you bring out the presence of the locals and on

         20  our behalf, on our behalf I want to personally thank

         21  you for sending a message that some people around

         22  here think that how we started, and somewhere along

         23  the line they thought that they can divide a house.

         24  So, today, on behalf of all of my colleagues, I want

         25  to personally acknowledge all of the local
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          2  presidents within District Council 37, in case you

          3  don't come up to testify, we recognize your

          4  presence, we commend you and we hope it's a new

          5  beginning to go back to what used to be.

          6                 Council Member Clarke.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Since I have

          8  had an opportunity to work closely with that kind

          9  gentleman who will not let me alone or let my office

         10  alone, from the Central Laundry, and having been

         11  able to meet with the executive members, the kind of

         12  frame or at least look at today's hearing and what

         13  one wanted to achieve, I just want to follow up on

         14  some of the questions that I gave you then and I

         15  want just to see whether you did your homework. One

         16  of it was the economic impact on the local economy

         17  of Brooklyn itself, based on the numbers of you who

         18  work there.

         19                 So, did HHC do a study of the

         20  economic impact on the neighborhood, because I told

         21  you to ask HHC what is the economic impact on the

         22  community when they withdraw the jobs. If any of you

         23  have any answer from HHC concerning any study they

         24  did and closing the laundry, what economic impact it

         25  would have on that community, and then something
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          2  about where the employees of the laundry live in

          3  Brooklyn and the household members, head of

          4  household, who without that job would either lose

          5  the viability of their home, their family and its

          6  stability; do you have any answers on that?

          7                 MR. SAUNDERS: According to

          8  representatives from the Brooklyn Central Laundry in

          9  HHC, there has never been an economic impact study

         10  performed, nor will there be an economic impact

         11  performed in the future, so they have no intention

         12  of doing that.

         13                 The second answer to your question,

         14  out of the Local 420 membership, approximately 130

         15  live in Brooklyn, 17 in Queens, 13 in Manhattan, two

         16  in Staten Island and 12 in the Bronx. So,

         17  overwhelmingly all of these individuals, most of

         18  these individuals live in Brooklyn but the majority,

         19  the overwhelming majority live right in New York

         20  City.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I also had

         22  asked whether it were possible for you to divulge

         23  today, so that we have a sense of what you are doing

         24  at the bargaining table so we don't get divided and

         25  get a story from the other side about this is what
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          2  the union said and agreed to and then we go to sleep

          3  and find out that is not what was said. We have been

          4  caught in that kind of story before, that you need

          5  to back that, because we have already made a deal

          6  with the union and why are you Council members

          7  getting in our business? We don't want to be told

          8  that we are not into the business, if you bring us

          9  in the business now, you have got to keep us at the

         10  table so that we know what you are doing. Now, I am

         11  the frank talk member of the City Council, because

         12  if you had all listened to me in '93 when I said

         13  don't give up a single job until you secure every

         14  other job, we probably wouldn't be sitting here

         15  today, but everybody said I was too radical then,

         16  and I am just as radical now because I know what

         17  bread and butter is all about.

         18                 I know what bread and butter is all

         19  about, when you can't feed your family everybody

         20  suffers.

         21                 So, I just want to put on the table,

         22  if you bring us in now, we don't want to hear that

         23  the deal was struck and we were not a part of the

         24  deal.

         25                 So, if you are going to deal us in,
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          2  we want to stay in. Can you tell me where you are in

          3  terms of bargaining with HHC and what you intend to

          4  do so we have all of the cards on the table and we

          5  can play with our decks on this side?

          6                 MR. SAUNDERS: Well, let me be

          7  perfectly clear I am putting the cards on the table.

          8  Our deal is this: that the Brooklyn Central Laundry

          9  not be privatized and those 200 workers remain,

         10  providing those essential public services.

         11                 Now, where we are in the bargaining

         12  process, we have asked under chapter 11, under

         13  section 11 of the MCMEA, we have asked for all of

         14  the information associated with the RFP. We want to

         15  have an opportunity to analyze that information and

         16  ask questions of the employer and present a counter

         17  offer to that.

         18                 Regarding negotiations, we are in

         19  negotiations now. We have been notified that in fact

         20  Angelica had been selected, so we have a 45-day

         21  period to negotiate whatever changes we can possibly

         22  make, so we are at the table right now.

         23                 Let me say this, that we are a union

         24  that believes that there has to be a restructuring

         25  of the health care delivery system in New York City.
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          2  But we have our own way of doing things, and we

          3  don't believe that privatizing services or closing

          4  down institutions is the proper response and the

          5  answer to providing a decent and quality public

          6  health care service delivery system in New York

          7  City.

          8                 So, we are sitting down at the table.

          9  We recognize that this is a changing environment and

         10  a changing industry. We understand that. We want to

         11  be at the table in suggesting and proposing ways

         12  that we can make the system better, that is what the

         13  purpose of negotiations are. We resent, we resent

         14  having that hammer of privatization held over our

         15  heads. We want to make the system better, we want to

         16  make it more accountable, we want to make it

         17  stronger for the citizens of New York, and I think

         18  that everybody has got to recognize that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before I call

         20  Council Member Reed, because I want to again lay out

         21  a scenario, because I do get briefed, and maybe in

         22  this question you could answer it for me.

         23                 You laid out the timetable, because I

         24  understand that you have until the 15th of March in

         25  this negotiation, of course collective bargaining we
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          2  are not part of, so I think that is where it is

          3  coming from, so let me be clear because we are

          4  committed and this -- you have 45 days from the time

          5  you met, and I believe it is what, March, or is it

          6  February?

          7                 MR. WHITE: February.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: February 15th?

          9                 MR. SAUNDERS: What we are doing, let

         10  me just clarify something that Dennis Sullivan told

         11  me. We are disputing when that clock starts, okay?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. I just want

         13  for those on this side who know exactly, one thing

         14  this chair could never be accused of, especially

         15  members of the Committee or even visiting members

         16  because of interest, that this chair keeps

         17  information from members. I just want to make sure,

         18  because I heard Council Member Clarke's question,

         19  which is very germane and important.

         20                 Allegedly you, the union, was called

         21  in to be notified or to be served that you have 45

         22  days to come back to the table, i.e. the City, and

         23  either present your proposal or what have you in

         24  terms of what this Angelica RFP can provide.

         25                 So far so good, correct?
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          2                 MR. SAUNDERS: Yes. And that process,

          3  according to the City, should have started January

          4  6th.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. So, that

          6  means that whether it is or it is not, whether it is

          7  contested or not, roughly around the 20th, or the

          8  15th or the 20th of February, that is when you are

          9  supposed to respond to the official notification; is

         10  that correct?

         11                 MR. SAUNDERS: Yes, we are responding

         12  now --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But you have

         14  until a certain date.

         15                 MR. SAUNDERS: That's exactly correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then I am, my

         17  understanding is that after that date, clearly by

         18  July 1 the City can enter into a contract with

         19  Angelica, that is what I am being told.

         20                 MR. SAUNDERS: That's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My question, when

         22  I met with the Administration or HHC, was the

         23  following: what happens between February 20th, 15th,

         24  20th, and July 1?

         25                 Because my question was, what is
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          2  going to happen to those 200 HHC workers currently

          3  at the Central Brooklyn facility, and I was told

          4  three things, which I am just laying out, if we are

          5  going to be in partnership I want to share with you

          6  since they are not here.

          7                 MR. SAUNDERS: Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: One, they

          9  mentioned early buy-out.

         10                 Two, they mentioned retraining.

         11                 And, of course, three, sorry.

         12                 Now, is that your understanding of

         13  the scenario before July 1, if they move to sign

         14  this contract?

         15                 MR. SAUNDERS: We have never had any

         16  discussions with HHC regarding retraining of these

         17  employees regarding an early buy-out, none of those

         18  things have been put on the table, let me make it

         19  clear.

         20                 If, in fact, we are unsuccessful in

         21  the negotiating process to work out an arrangement

         22  to protect our membership with Brooklyn Central

         23  Laundry and to keep that under public control, then

         24  it is my understanding that the City in effect goes

         25  into negotiations with Angelica.
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          2                 Clearly, the union would then have to

          3  investigate and look all of the kinds of options

          4  that exist before us to challenge those kinds of

          5  discussions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So what I am

          7  trying to put on the floor is the following: Is it

          8  fair to say that the kicking into this contractual

          9  agreement with Angelica does not take place until

         10  around the 1st of July?

         11                 MR. SAUNDERS: If they are successful

         12  in negotiating with Angelica the specifics of the

         13  request for proposal, then it would kick in around

         14  then.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The only reason I

         16  am saying that for my colleague is very important,

         17  you know, this morning at least the Mayor submitted

         18  his preliminary budget, I want to be clear and when

         19  the question is asked what we can do, I suggest that

         20  we keep in mind that between now and July 1, in the

         21  interim there is a budget in between, you know,

         22  power concedes nothing, never has, never will,

         23  without demand or struggle, that type of partnership

         24  that I just want to be clear.

         25                 Okay, Council Member Reed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 I apologize to those of you who are

          5  here to testify, and particularly all of us here who

          6  are working hard, that I was having to be some place

          7  else, in terms of trying to respond to this

          8  Administration's assaults on the working people, I

          9  think all of us as Council members are feeling like

         10  ping-pong balls because we have to be every place at

         11  once trying to guard what little we have left that

         12  he has eroded from the working people of the City of

         13  New York. So, I apologize for being here, but I

         14  certainly in listening to this testimony have the

         15  essence of it.

         16                 And I don't know exactly who this

         17  comment is directed to, but in listening to this

         18  issue about jobs, it's ironic to me that we have a

         19  Governor and a Mayor that are talking about bringing

         20  more jobs into the City and we actually have a

         21  Governor talking about preference in a contract, to

         22  people who keep work and do work here in New York,

         23  but God forbid that we talk about preferences for

         24  certain people in the City of New York, that's not a

         25  Republican concept.
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          2                 So that we are having this dialogue

          3  is confusing to me in the first place, that we are

          4  going to get rid of local jobs, move them out of the

          5  City. Mr. Chair, I know you have no responsibility

          6  for it, but I also must say that while we had an

          7  important hearing yesterday about the law, the new

          8  laws about dogs and pets and attacks, it is a

          9  tragedy to me also that we have one camera over here

         10  that is paid for by the City of New York or

         11  Crosswalks. Yesterday we had a conversation about

         12  dogs and we had NBC and CBS and ABC and everybody

         13  else, and today we are here talking about people's

         14  lives and their jobs and we don't have a camera from

         15  any one of those local stations.

         16                 So, when we are watching TV, we want

         17  to pay attention to who is watching because they are

         18  not watching our backs, okay?

         19                 On the subject of this, I am not sure

         20  who at the table can answer this question, but do

         21  you know in the contract, in the RFP that was put

         22  out or in the people that bid on it, if there is

         23  health care provided for the workers in any of these

         24  places that bid?

         25                 MR. SAUNDERS: No, it doesn't specify
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          2  in the RFP.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And so you're,

          4  as I understand it as the process normally works,

          5  you are not privy to the proposal that they

          6  submitted based on the RFP?

          7                 MR. SAUNDERS: We will be getting the

          8  information, but I don't think that it specifies if

          9  in fact there is health insurance in the RFP.

         10                 The contract only speaks for the

         11  price per pound. And I have got to tell you, I mean,

         12  if you look at the history of Angelica in the other

         13  work sites where they perform, it is not even a

         14  similar kind of service. Their work record is very,

         15  very poor. They have had many health and safety

         16  violations, many of the individuals receive barely

         17  just over the minimum wage, the benefits are

         18  lacking, so I would question HHC and the City saying

         19  are you going to be a responsible employer or are

         20  you not going to be a responsible employer? We think

         21  the City has an obligation to be a responsible

         22  employer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, that would

         24  certainly be something that I would think that we

         25  should take a look at. I mean, again, it is an irony
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          2  on an irony in trying to deal with this

          3  Administration, but we are talking about health and

          4  the fact that we are cutting back on health services

          5  for the uninsured and then we are going to let a

          6  huge contract of the City out to people who probably

          7  sound like they are going to work hard and be

          8  uninsured, just building and compounding the

          9  problem.

         10                 So, as I understand the Chair's

         11  questions to you, you have not been able to bid on

         12  this contract yourself yet; is that what you are

         13  saying?

         14                 MR. SAUNDERS: That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And is it your

         16  intention to do that?

         17                 MR. SAUNDERS: It is our intention to

         18  sit down and negotiate with the City under law in

         19  this 45-day period to possibly come up with some

         20  recommendations how we can provide the services, our

         21  current members can provide the service and keep

         22  that service under public control. This is the only

         23  opportunity that we have had to do this.

         24                 We have not been informed in the

         25  past. The City tends and HHC tends to forget about
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          2  those people that provide essential public services

          3  here in New York City, and they act and they hold a

          4  hammer over our head, as far as privatization is

          5  concerned and then they want us to react to that.

          6                 We want to do this, we want to be

          7  aggressive and proactive and pushing for public

          8  services. We believe in public services and public

          9  employees providing public services in New York

         10  City. We want to have a seat at the table that talks

         11  about how the public service system can be

         12  restructured. We believe we deserve that. We believe

         13  that our membership and we believe that the people

         14  who work in the hospitals understand better than

         15  anybody else how to improve the delivery system in

         16  the hospitals and we have not had that opportunity

         17  to have that conversation, we would expect that we

         18  would have that conversation.

         19                 MR. WHITE: Excuse me. I want to

         20  answer your question, you are talking about the

         21  Health, the Angelica Health. We had a meeting with

         22  the City last week. We asked the City straight out,

         23  point blank, what about the workers, are you

         24  interested in how the workers get paid? They said

         25  no. We asked them about their health? They said they
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          2  don't care.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you. Well,

          4  that is what the assumption was.

          5                 In your testimony, and then I want to

          6  wrap up because my colleagues have other questions.

          7  Do we have an understanding to what the cost to the

          8  City's economy would be if we lost these jobs?

          9                 MR. SAUNDERS: We are projecting that

         10  it will be about $10 million. And that is based upon

         11  the fact that these are City residents. If they lose

         12  their jobs, then you have other implications, so we

         13  are projecting it is about $10 million.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also say,

         17  because, again, Councilman, you raise something that

         18  I urge also again in this partnership, and it is

         19  important. And I know my counsel has been working

         20  with DC 37.

         21                 When you say about this other group,

         22  if you have any back-up material that shows that

         23  they have been cited for violations, would you be so

         24  kind to share it with us?

         25                 Because one of things that I will say
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          2  to all of my colleagues, and this Committee doesn't

          3  have a hearing and that is the end of it, that's why

          4  I tried to set the tone, and I keep reminding us

          5  that we are going to start a budget process that

          6  will somewhere up wind up by June. It does not say

          7  that we cannot have a follow-up meeting where HHC is

          8  brought in on the violations. Because this Committee

          9  has an obligation under the rules of the Council to

         10  have oversight hearings, and I have taken away from

         11  what I am assuming is what they right away say, oh,

         12  it's a union thing. Well, we know how to deal with

         13  that. So, if you would be so kind, those kind of

         14  information I suggest you get to the Counsel of this

         15  Committee and we will work together when it comes to

         16  whatever happens between now and June.

         17                 MR. SAUNDERS: And we can provide that

         18  information to you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I appreciate

         20  that.

         21                 Council Member Pinkett and then

         22  Boyland.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 In listening to what you said in
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          2  siting the problems with the proposed contract and

          3  all of the flaws within the contract, this of course

          4  has been called to the attention of the City; has it

          5  been publicized?

          6                 MR. SAUNDERS: We publicized it among

          7  our membership. We are starting to meet with

          8  community organizations, churches. We want the

          9  citizens of New York to know that this is a bad deal

         10  for this City.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Has it been

         12  sent out in a press release to the major press? Has

         13  there been a press conference held?

         14                 MR. SAUNDERS: Yes, we have done press

         15  releases, we have not done a press conference yet,

         16  but we have done press releases.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Well, it just

         18  seems to me there are two problems. When you do it

         19  to your membership they know it and of course it is

         20  good to depend upon the Council and whatever they

         21  say and we say we will do, but someone else must ask

         22  the questions, one of the reasons we have this

         23  business of having a contract and a review board for

         24  contracts is that someone with this kind of record

         25  is not supposed to be able to get a contract from
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          2  the City of New York. How did this contract slip

          3  through? Why would someone with this kind of record

          4  get a contract from the City?

          5                 Someone should be able to answer how

          6  anyone with this kind of record received the

          7  contract from the City of New York. And the reason

          8  they don't have to answer is because there is no

          9  public record established. It shouldn't be a closed

         10  conversation, it has to be an open conversation, so

         11  that someone will say when the Mayor has his next

         12  press conference, Mr. Mayor, this has been said, can

         13  you give us an explanation? And that is so very

         14  important.

         15                 The other thing I would like to know

         16  is, I hear what you said and I believe you. I know

         17  about the laundry, I used to work at Kings County

         18  too, I forgot to say that yesterday. But I want to

         19  know with all of the work that you do, what is the

         20  difference in staffing at Kings County Laundry today

         21  than it was let's say ten years ago, 20 years ago,

         22  five years ago, do you have the same staff?

         23                 MR. WHITE: No, we have less staff.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay.

         25                 MR. WHITE: We used to be, say three
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          2  years, five years ago we used to be 354 people

          3  there, now we work with 200 people.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: And is there

          5  more laundry or less laundry?

          6                 MR. WHITE: More laundry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: More laundry.

          8                 MR. WHITE: More laundry. A couple of

          9  years ago we did from 12 million pounds. Now we do

         10  16.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Oh, 16.

         12                 MR. WHITE: It is increasing because

         13  we picked up the

         14  Susan McKenzie Home and they get accreditation from

         15  the State, they add more beds to keep patients in

         16  there, long-term patients in there, and we get more

         17  linen, we are not decreasing, we are increasing.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: So, in

         19  essence what this report, this fiscal report that

         20  shows that the City is spending more, in essence the

         21  City is getting more for its buck because fewer

         22  people happen to be doing more work and spending

         23  more hours, right?

         24                 MR. WHITE: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: You haven't

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  told the story, have you?

          3                 MR. WHITE: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: You need to

          5  tell that story. That story needs to get out because

          6  everyone is made to believe that you are sitting

          7  there and you are not really doing the job, and if

          8  they can only make money, if you lazy guys would go

          9  to work, then maybe the poor City would be able to

         10  manage, that is the story that should be told. That

         11  story needs to be told.

         12                 And I think what has to happen is,

         13  don't tell a silent story, don't whisper it in my

         14  ear alone, get out and tell the public the story,

         15  and I think that is important.

         16                 The other aspect that I think that I

         17  have heard is that we are not getting the

         18  third-party payer. Why aren't we getting the third

         19  party payers? Kings County used to attract a lot of

         20  third-party payers. There are a lot of people there

         21  who collect payments for people who come into the

         22  emergency room, you can't come into the emergency

         23  room, somebody is there waiting to ask do you have

         24  health insurance. To make an application, why isn't

         25  that money being applied and offsetting the cost?
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          2  Because if you come into the emergency room, and if

          3  you are bleeding, you are on the gurney and the

          4  gurney has a sheet, isn't it?

          5                 MR. WHITE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Somebody is

          7  getting paid, is that considered part of the money

          8  or the income that you bring into that hospital? Is

          9  it? No. But it should be, because at one time I

         10  think I discovered and Council Member Robles checked

         11  and we also found out that the income that was

         12  produced by Kings County was greater than the

         13  projected budget. Yet, we allow them to say that

         14  they are losing money. And that means simply that

         15  they divert the money, in other words, they take off

         16  the excess, more than they budgeted, and they say

         17  they are losing money.

         18                 MR. WHITE: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: What I would

         20  like to suggest, that in addition to taking the

         21  position that the union is taking, which is good,

         22  that the union take a fiscal position, they say we

         23  don't know how to manage money, we ought to show

         24  them, that we have learned how to manage money and

         25  we have learned that they don't make a dollar that
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          2  we don't bring into that institution, and that the

          3  money goes out because they spend carelessly the

          4  money that we bring into the institution.

          5                 They don't give us credit for the

          6  money that we put into the institution.

          7                 And thirdly, if we look at that

          8  report, it says that they didn't make the

          9  corrections, they didn't make the repairs, they did

         10  not remodel, they did not improve, and if they are

         11  not going after the third party payment, it means

         12  they want to kill off a health care facility that

         13  serves the people of the community, and who are

         14  those people in that community? Who are the people

         15  that they are refusing to service? And who are the

         16  people they are refusing to serve? And who is it

         17  that they are denying good health care too? Who will

         18  be on those sheets? Who will not get that quality

         19  laundry service?

         20                 And I would say that they always want

         21  to tell us they want to train us from welfare to the

         22  job. We have people who do not want to be on

         23  welfare. They have jobs and they want to keep the

         24  jobs, so the thing I want to do is I want the union

         25  to give us the proposal and a plan and I trust you
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          2  at the negotiating table, because I know the

          3  District Council has something that they have got to

          4  prove, and that is that they are back. That they are

          5  back. You are back. You are going to make this city

          6  sing, and I certainly would like to be in on the

          7  chorus.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         10  Boyland.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman. I also would like to commend the group

         13  that got everyone together at Emmanuel Church

         14  yesterday. I had my representatives there, I heard

         15  they had four, five buses out there. All right, that

         16  is sticking together, that is what unions and

         17  togetherness will do. So, congratulations on doing

         18  that.

         19                 I have a question for the union. From

         20  the statement that the Chairman made, which was very

         21  profound. According to the municipal coalition

         22  agreement which governs the collective bargaining

         23  agreement contract between each agency and DC 37,

         24  Section 11 states that the City must inform and

         25  provide information to the union whenever they plan

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  to take action, that may adversely affect employees

          3  covered by that agreement.

          4                 In conclusion, the employer has to

          5  provide the union with this information in

          6  sufficient detail. Now, this look like it has some

          7  legal ramifications that may fall behind this, and

          8  maybe we ought to, as you sit at the negotiating

          9  table to offer a counter offer, and within the RFP

         10  process, let them know that this may be able to --

         11  you may be able to take this to court also.

         12                 If we have 200 strong people and

         13  their families collectively getting together, like

         14  Council Member Pinkett said, we may need to take

         15  this further to the neediest to let them know what

         16  exactly is going on in Brooklyn and that we are a

         17  community that will stand behind our people and our

         18  families and we need that.

         19                 MR. SAUNDERS: Let me just say this,

         20  that we are going to be looking at every angle and

         21  every opportunity to make our point. We are going to

         22  be looking at ways to communicate with the Office of

         23  Collective Bargaining. If in fact we see that things

         24  have been done wrong, we will not hesitate to

         25  possibly look at some legal action, so we are going
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          2  to be investigating all of those kinds of things.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

          4                 And you have my support and the whole

          5  Boyland family, our elected officials within that

          6  area, definitely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me make a

          8  suggestion before I -- because I see no more

          9  questions -- but let me just say this: I think we

         10  should start also looking and doing like we used to

         11  do. There are 200 plus people affected. There are

         12  people who have family. They also, because I know

         13  the union, it is not like some others where half of

         14  your members are outside and some are inside, most

         15  of you are inside. I suggest, because I tell you, I

         16  happened to stumble upon this, and as you can see,

         17  today we have a hearing. I am here to work with you.

         18                 May I suggest you go back to the good

         19  old days to identifying every single member, every

         20  single family member and start finding out who the

         21  Council member is, and start writing like you used

         22  to do? Because, see, your job is through the

         23  collective bargaining and you will get to that, and

         24  I want to again say it, we are about to deal with a

         25  budget, and I must say respectfully, sounds good,
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          2  looks good, but power concedes nothing, it never

          3  has, it never will, without demands and struggle.

          4  And when you start and elected officials start

          5  seeing from their constituents tons of letters, then

          6  you might get your subsidy back to HHC that you once

          7  did in one budget year.

          8                 So, I want to be clear to every

          9  member, that if we are really going to be a

         10  partnership, then don't tell me, let's talk with

         11  each other, because I am not going to take the

         12  responsibility as chairman of this Committee, and,

         13  again, I want to be clear for the record, I

         14  understand it, we will continue to address this

         15  issue between now and then, but, you know, I am not

         16  a lawyer, thank God, but the lawyers are telling me,

         17  when you ask a question about these contracts and

         18  this and that, you know, the people in New York City

         19  changed the Charter and what we did, we didn't

         20  realize, we gave to somebody and we created a

         21  monster, that most of the power, and we want to know

         22  why, is because we gave it to them when we changed

         23  the Charter. So, I don't want to give any wrong

         24  impression when people leave here, like we have this

         25  super duper powers and it is a push a button and
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          2  that is it. It can die if we go back to what we used

          3  to do once.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

          5                 MR. SAUNDERS: Mr. Chairman, let me

          6  just say this, we appreciate that comment. We agree

          7  with it to the point where we are already doing it.

          8  And we are going to have our members calling

          9  legislators, we are going to have our members walk

         10  down the streets. Let me tell you something, this is

         11  a commitment from me and I represent the national

         12  union representing 1.3 million members across this

         13  country. District Council 37 is back, it is going to

         14  be fighting, it is going to be aggressive, and it is

         15  going to take care of business in New York City.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also

         17  acknowledge the presence of a distinguished

         18  colleague, particularly she is the chair of the

         19  Council's Committee on Higher Education, who also

         20  has joined us, Council Member Helen Marshall, which

         21  I understand she has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I was not

         23  aware of this Committee's meeting today, actually I

         24  had a conflict, but when I saw this issue it was --

         25  Mr. Saunders, I did receive your letter, I was
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          2  appalled by it. And looking at the figure of $6.5

          3  million that will be saved annually, you know what

          4  we are talking about? We are talking about your

          5  pension, we are talking about your health benefits.

          6                 We are a great City, we are supposed

          7  to be able to give our people who work for us

          8  adequate benefits. I am looking at the hue of the

          9  people in this audience, why is it that this union

         10  and this particular branch has been targeted?

         11                 If we are to build middle class

         12  communities around this City of people of color, how

         13  are we going to do it without having good, solid

         14  jobs. Most of the communities that we live in, like

         15  the one that I live in in Queens, is built on

         16  minority people who have had civil service jobs,

         17  worked hard for their City, earned their due, they

         18  can retire, they can get mortgages, and live fairly

         19  well. That is what New York City is made of. Our

         20  City must certainly, if that is part of the savings,

         21  it's a loss, because for everyone that stays in the

         22  City, lives here, works here, you are paying taxes,

         23  you buy goods, you contribute back into the society,

         24  and so, therefore, it is not a real saving. It is

         25  not a real savings, we lose out, without a middle
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          2  class, without a working class we lose out on your

          3  taxes and your dollars. I am behind you 100 percent.

          4                 And I am very concerned. I also

          5  represent a district that has a large immigrant

          6  population in it, they are violated every chance

          7  they get with privatization. Because whoever it is

          8  that gets the contracts, they are not obligated to

          9  obey any of the rules that we normally would, they

         10  hire people at slave wages, but you know, the

         11  immigrant population, they are waking up too, they

         12  are not going to take it either. So they might as

         13  well face the fact that we need unionized solid

         14  working benefits and conditions.

         15                 And like I said, I am with you 100

         16  percent. I am not a member of this Committee but I

         17  certainly am very, very concerned about that.

         18                 Just as I was concerned about the

         19  people who gave traffic directions. I saw women who

         20  -- I mean, freezing cold winter, summertime, who

         21  were out there, but that whole branch was moved out

         22  and police were put in their place so only a few

         23  were remaining. This is not good for our City.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 Again, before I dismiss you, let me
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          2  just say this and let me say this respectfully

          3  because I have too much respect and love for my dear

          4  colleague who I served with her in the State

          5  Assembly.

          6                 Let me say that I am heartened

          7  because I am glad of her remarks, and let me just

          8  also say that she is now, as you know, the Caucus of

          9  the Council, which is those of us, people of color,

         10  you are in the same boat? Well, maybe, may I

         11  respectfully suggest, that this becomes an agenda

         12  item of the Black and Latino Caucus of the City

         13  Council. Because as I said before, it is so good to

         14  see the presidents of local unions that I remember

         15  when I first started what it was, that I think we

         16  too now, as a family, but let me be clear, no one is

         17  going to give to us what is rightfully ours unless

         18  we do it ourselves.

         19                 So, may I, and let me congratulate --

         20  because she is the co-president or co-chairperson,

         21  the Caucus now has two co-chairs or two

         22  co-presidents, and Helen Marshall is one and

         23  Guillermo Linares is the other. We did that to send

         24  a clear message. So, may I respectfully suggest, as

         25  we are saying to the union, and as we are saying to
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          2  the world, then I believe that this should become an

          3  agenda item and invite them to come to our next

          4  meeting and discuss the future of not only the

          5  Central Laundry, but where are we as a people going

          6  to be when the Year 2001 comes and goes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Mr. Chair, I

          8  know that I speak for my co-president Guillermo

          9  Linares, we will definitely have this on the agenda,

         10  just as we did with Mr. Ensley, okay?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And we have

         13  done so many other times with DC 37. This will be an

         14  item on our agenda.

         15                 MR. SAUNDERS: We look forward to that

         16  discussion.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Administrator

         18  Saunders, for me it is good to personally have a

         19  dialogue with you, and I must say that this Chair

         20  and this Committee and this Council stands ready to

         21  work with you, not against you, in whatever way we

         22  can be helpful as long as we communicate with each

         23  other. That is what government of the people, by the

         24  people and for the people is. And let me say that

         25  many of us on this side have not forgotten from
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          2  whence we come and how we got here, so let the

          3  people begin to work again and again.

          4                 I give you the last word, sir,

          5  because that is a courtesy I always render to

          6  speakers.

          7                 MR. SAUNDERS: We just, we all look

          8  forward in working with all of you to change the

          9  direction of the City.

         10                 And let me tell you this, that we are

         11  committed to moving toward positive change. We

         12  believe that the Committee is committed to moving

         13  toward positive change and we just want to thank you

         14  for giving us this opportunity to hear about what is

         15  going on in the hospital system and we look forward

         16  to future dialogue.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you so

         19  much.

         20                 If you must leave, do it quietly

         21  because we must move on.

         22                 MR. ORENGO: Is there a representative

         23  from the Brooklyn Borough President's Office? Mr.

         24  Bob Lapenske?

         25                 Ed Ott, from the Central Labor
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          2  Council.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't you

          4  just come up.

          5                 MR. ORENGO: Please come up.

          6                 Mr. William Henning, from the

          7  Communication Workers of America. Please come up.

          8                 Mr. Arthur Illery, from the Teamsters

          9  Local 237. And Local 832, Mr. Kjellberg.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, thank you

         11  so much. Why don't we just identify yourselves for

         12  the record, and then you proceed, in terms of

         13  individually, if you have prepared remarks, please

         14  go ahead and deliver it.

         15                 MR. OTT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 My name is Ed Ott, I am the Director

         17  for New York Policy for the New York City Central

         18  Labor Council, I will be reading a statement from

         19  our president, Brian McLaughlin.

         20                 I would like to thank the

         21  distinguished members of the City Council, Speaker

         22  Vallone and Chairman Robles, for providing an

         23  opportunity for the public to express its concerns

         24  about the potential loss at the Brooklyn Central

         25  Laundry.
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          2                 It is my hope that today's hearing

          3  will lead to a reconsideration by the Health and

          4  Hospitals Corporation to sell off this important

          5  facility. We believe that the loss of 200 jobs in

          6  the Borough of Brooklyn under any circumstances is

          7  tragic and in this case entirely avoidable.

          8                 The selling off of this asset is the

          9  result of a conscious policy of

         10  de-industrialization, similar to what this country

         11  experienced in the private sector throughout the

         12  1980s.

         13                 The failure of the Health and

         14  Hospitals Corporation to fill previous requests for

         15  major equipment improvements at the laundry appears

         16  to have been an effort to make the justification for

         17  selling the unit that much stronger. Items such as a

         18  new batch washer system, flatwork irons, electrical

         19  improvements, and a new steamline all would have

         20  assisted in making the plant more efficient.

         21                 Yet, despite the failure of

         22  management to reinvest in this plan, productivity

         23  did not fall, it was through the efforts of

         24  dedicated Local 420 workforce that productivity and

         25  quality was maintained at a facility that handled
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          2  more than 16 million pounds of soiled and

          3  contaminated laundry each and every year.

          4                 I would also like to ask you what the

          5  City would be doing if 200 jobs were being lost in

          6  the private sector.

          7                 This City has spent millions of

          8  dollars on job retention in the private sector, and

          9  rightly bent over backwards to assist in the

         10  development of a new stock exchange. Is there

         11  something about these workers that don't merit the

         12  same level of concern?

         13                 Has health care for the four become

         14  so unfashionable that those who work in a health

         15  care system deserve little or no consideration?

         16                 Is HHC's reward for a job well done

         17  destined to be unemployment?

         18                 I would remind all of you that this

         19  is not just the closing of a laundry, but another

         20  step away from public institutions that serve all

         21  the people of the City. This is a public health care

         22  institution that serves all the people of the City.

         23                 This is a public health care

         24  institution that we cannot allow ourselves to forget

         25  that fact.
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          2                 I would also like to know why

          3  management of HHC is sending a $4.2 million contract

          4  outside the City? When one considers the multiplier

          5  effect of this amount of money we should ask are we

          6  really saving anything?

          7                 Has anyone in management throughout

          8  thought of the impact on the local Brooklyn Brooklyn

          9  economy? The people of Brooklyn have made enormous

         10  strides in gaining new investments in their

         11  boroughs.

         12                 This contract sends out the wrong

         13  message. Does HHC really want to be held up as an

         14  example of why you shouldn't do business in Brooklyn

         15  New York? Don't you think that competing cities will

         16  hold this up as an example to benefit them? There

         17  are several more questions that need to be asked

         18  before moving this work outside the City.

         19                 Was the bid a real price or will the

         20  company be coming back to the City looking for

         21  additional monies?

         22                 Can the hospitals be properly

         23  supplied from remote locations in New Jersey,

         24  Philadelphia and upstate Ballston Spa?

         25                 Is the company capable of the same
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          2  level of service for the price they are offering?

          3                 What will the impact be on the

          4  community and businesses that currently supply the

          5  City-owned laundry and serve the needs of its

          6  employees?

          7                 What will the impact be on the

          8  workers and their families?

          9                 Does HHC even care?

         10                 The New York City Central Labor

         11  Council, representing 500 local unions in the

         12  private and public sector, with a membership of more

         13  than one and a half million working people, opposes

         14  this sell off and seriously questions the process

         15  that led up to it.

         16                 Before this is allowed to go forward,

         17  we would hope that the City Council would seek some

         18  additional answers from those responsible.

         19                 One last thing I would like to say,

         20  and it is very clear to me, when we talk about

         21  deindustrialization, if I picked up a sledge hammer

         22  and walked through that facility and did the damage

         23  that they did by the failure to reinvest I would be

         24  in jail. And someone ought to ask some hard

         25  questions. They were given a public trust and they
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          2  destroyed it. They tried to make this plant more

          3  inefficient to justify the sell off, and someone

          4  ought to be asking some questions of who made those

          5  decisions in management and what is their

          6  responsibility to the public dollar?

          7                 MR. HENNING: Mr. Chairman, my name is

          8  Bill Henning, I am vice president of Local 1180,

          9  Communications Workers of America. I want to thank

         10  you and the other members of the Committee for

         11  conducting this important hearing.

         12                 In an era when the City

         13  Administration is touting self-sufficiency and the

         14  importance of work, it is unconscionable that it

         15  promotes the elimination of good-paying, productive

         16  jobs for New Yorkers.

         17                 You will hear today from a variety of

         18  people about the personal impact of this job loss.

         19  Our union has but one person who works at the

         20  Brooklyn Central Laundry, and while we are here on

         21  her behalf, we are here in support of the other

         22  individuals as well.

         23                 But more importantly, the City

         24  Council needs to recognize not just the impact on

         25  those lives who will be directly altered, but the
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          2  overall impact on the New York City community.

          3                 HHC contends that they will retrain

          4  and place the affected individual workers into other

          5  positions, a contention, by the way, not justified

          6  by HHC's recent history of 900 job cuts in May and

          7  the closing of Neponsit. The fact remains that we

          8  are talking about eliminating from the New York City

          9  job market over 200 jobs, jobs that pay a union

         10  wage, with health benefits, jobs that allow workers

         11  to raise their families in dignity.

         12                 New York can ill-afford this

         13  continuing erosion of good paying jobs, especially

         14  at a time when the Mayor's stated goal is to move

         15  thousands of the poorest New Yorkers off welfare.

         16                 These are precisely the kind of jobs

         17  that need to be available, not just for those

         18  leaving public assistance, but for those who do not

         19  want to go on public assistance in the first place.

         20                 Proponents of this privatization

         21  scheme claim it will save money. This short-term

         22  narrow view cannot even be justified by their wild

         23  suppositions. But even if it could be demonstrated,

         24  have they considered all the costs? The 213 wage

         25  earners bring their paychecks into their
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          2  communities, where they create other economic

          3  activity, paying landlords, grocers, transportation,

          4  restaurants, clothing stores, dry cleaners and the

          5  like.

          6                 What will replace that activity if

          7  production shifts to Edison, New Jersey or some

          8  other far away land?

          9                 And if Angelica decides to take over

         10  and run the Brooklyn plant, the only savings

         11  possible will be labor costs. Do we want our legacy

         12  to be one of replacing good jobs paying moderate

         13  wages with worker protection through union

         14  contracts, with minimum wage jobs and sweatshop

         15  conditions?

         16                 We continue to suffer from a soft

         17  labor market in New York City. In 1997 while the

         18  rest of the country was recovering from the most

         19  recent recession, the national unemployment rate was

         20  4.9 percent, while here in the City it languished at

         21  9.4 percent.

         22                 Meanwhile, this Administration

         23  continued the practice of giving away tax money to

         24  private entities with the professed aim of keeping

         25  jobs in New York.
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          2                 For example, in 1998, the City gave

          3  tax exemptions to real estate in the City with a

          4  value of $900 million. This cost City taxpayers $50

          5  million in revenue. Even if the maximum claimed

          6  savings of $7 million through this privatization

          7  scheme were to materialize, we believe it is worth

          8  that small amount to invest in the jobs of 213 hard

          9  working New Yorkers. Are public jobs any less

         10  valuable to us than Wall Street jobs? The answer

         11  must be a resounding no.

         12                 The City Council must use its

         13  oversight power to ensure that HHC does not

         14  contribute further to the generation of economic

         15  life in this City. The 7,500 members of Local 1180

         16  are prepared to assist you in that effort.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Who is

         19  next?

         20                 MR. ILLERY: Well, here I am again,

         21  the last one on the totem poll.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES:  Do me a favor, I

         23  need for you to identify yourself for the record.

         24  Remember I told you about the stenographer and the

         25  tapes?
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          2                 MR. ILLERY: My name is Arthur Illery,

          3  I am the Trustee of Local 237 Teamsters, also a

          4  director of the Citywide Division.

          5                 My name is Arthur Illery, and I come

          6  before you today to speak against the privatization

          7  of the Brooklyn Laundry. This attempt by the Health

          8  and Hospitals Corporation to continue with its plan

          9  to turn crucial health services into money-making

         10  businesses will jeopardize services and take away

         11  good union positions with benefits, work week limits

         12  and high standards, safety standards.

         13                 In addition, it violated the spirit

         14  of a City law sponsored by Mary Pinkett, which

         15  prohibits contracting out of certain significant

         16  City services. The Health and Hospitals Corporation

         17  receives City money, and what more significant

         18  service is there than ensuring the efficient and

         19  safe operation of City hospitals.

         20                 The process by which this firm was

         21  chosen has been characterized by secrecy. How was

         22  this firm chosen? It is questionable that Health and

         23  Hospitals Corporation could have chosen this firm on

         24  the basis of lower costs and reliability, if the

         25  firm must transport linens over the George
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          2  Washington Bridge or through the Holland and Lincoln

          3  Tunnel, if the firm in the New Jersey, Edison Plant,

          4  doesn't have the capacity, linen must be transported

          5  to Pennsylvania or Albany. The Brooklyn Laundry is

          6  directly behind Kings County Hospital Center and

          7  within miles of the hospitals it services. Our

          8  workers are dedicated taxpayers who live in the

          9  great City of New York.

         10                 At the Brooklyn Laundry, they have

         11  the opportunity to have decent benefits and career

         12  opportunities. These jobs protect workers and their

         13  families from falling into poverty, and being forced

         14  to turn to welfare. Closing the Brooklyn Laundry

         15  will not only have consequences for the people who

         16  work there, and their families, but also effect

         17  service delivery to public hospitals in New York

         18  City, the new company operations are in Edison, New

         19  Jersey, instead of in Brooklyn. This will reduce the

         20  reliability of 24-hour turn-around time for clean

         21  linens, essential for hospitals.

         22                 This is not a business which should

         23  be left for the private enterprise to self regulate,

         24  this is work which should be done by union

         25  professionals.
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          2                 We have seen time and time again the

          3  initial low bid for services changes to higher costs

          4  once the contract has been signed and public

          5  employee jobs have been taken away. Don't we ever

          6  learn by our mistakes? Keep the present system and

          7  improve it where it needs improvement. Just don't

          8  throw it away on some questionable promise of lower

          9  cost.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         12                 If he is the bottom of the totem

         13  poll, what are you? No.

         14                 MR. KJELLBERG: Members of the City

         15  Council, colleagues in the Municipal Labor Unions,

         16  ladies and gentlemen: My name is Kjell Kjellberg, I

         17  am the General Manager of Local 832, International

         18  Brotherhood of Teamsters, sister Local 237.

         19                 We represent 13 supervisory employees

         20  working both the day and night shift at the Brooklyn

         21  Central Laundry. We supervise the 200 people that

         22  were talked about here today in their tasks in

         23  cleaning the laundry and linen.

         24                 We have represented these laundry

         25  supervisors, there are three titles of them, for 25
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          2  years. We have watched our members work their way up

          3  through the civil service merit system, hoping for a

          4  better future and we have watched many of them

          5  retire with the security of a City pension and a

          6  City health plan for their families.

          7                 Our members in this unit have an

          8  average of 15 years of service. A couple of them

          9  have less than a year to qualify for retirement. And

         10  as an aside I can assure you the Health and

         11  Hospitals Corporation has not spoken to any of our

         12  members about it in early buy-outs or any other

         13  alternative.

         14                 What they face now is tragic. They

         15  and the other 200 civil service workers who they

         16  supervise are being told that their service is all

         17  for naught in the name of economy, and instead of

         18  being civil servants they face a prospect of

         19  becoming wards of the City and State by requiring

         20  unemployment and social service to support their

         21  families. Who ultimately pays for this? Why, the

         22  taxpayers, of course. The taxpayers will lose

         23  doubly, which has been pointed out. First through

         24  the loss of payroll taxes from these Health and

         25  Hospitals Corporation employees, and secondly,
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          2  through the loss of a multi-million dollar service

          3  facility which has been allowed to be run into the

          4  ground to the State of New Jersey. All this at a

          5  time when the City is trying to lure industry to the

          6  City rather than lose it across the Hudson River.

          7                 How does this fit into the

          8  privatization equation? Well, it doesn't fit in.

          9                 Who stands to gain? The Angelica

         10  Corporation out of St. Louis, and its textile

         11  services division out of Durham, North Carolina. And

         12  Angelica is broken up into three subdivisions,

         13  textile services, Durham, North Carolina, is in

         14  charge of the cleaning and the laundry.

         15                 How is this supposedly being done? By

         16  shifting 16 million pounds of hospital laundry a

         17  year to a plant 40 miles away, I was there, in New

         18  Jersey, manned by 120 people working for six to

         19  seven dollars an hour. The question is, can 120

         20  people turn around laundry in 24 hours, which took

         21  237 City employees working round the clock to

         22  produce? The answer is obvious. We think not.

         23                 These Edison, New Jersey workers have

         24  already absorbed the workload generated by three

         25  plants, which Angelica shut down last year in New
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          2  Jersey, Newark, and Milford, Connecticut, and I can

          3  assure you, none of those laid off workers in

          4  Milford, Connecticut are community to new jobs in

          5  Edison, New Jersey. They simply made the managerial

          6  decision that these plants are no longer productive,

          7  shifted the work load, trucked it to Edison, New

          8  Jersey, and they have two shifts going there with

          9  120 people and there is no room for extra workers,

         10  unless they hire maybe 30, 40 more people, at six to

         11  seven dollars an hour, to take 16 million pounds of

         12  laundry from the City. It can't be done.

         13                 So, what is going to happen? It is

         14  going to go to Ballston Spa Upstate, Northern Albany

         15  in the Adirondack foothills, and Philadelphia, the

         16  outskirts, Scranton. Boston is closing, as it was

         17  revealed by our colleague Mr. White. He has done his

         18  homework.

         19                 Those plants are working fine. They

         20  are not prepared at this time to take the overload

         21  from the City.

         22                 The hospital patients lying in soiled

         23  clothes waiting for linen delivery from a truck

         24  stuck in a snow storm in Philadelphia or Ballston

         25  Spa, I have made the trip many times, is not going
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          2  to hear any excuses about delays.

          3                 Angelica in Edison has two shifts,

          4  and they end at midnight. The question then becomes,

          5  we have 11 hospitals and various health clinics and

          6  Medical Examiner's Office, where are they going to

          7  squeeze our linen in? They are going to have to put

          8  a new wing, construct a new wing in that building

          9  and buy an awful lot of more machinery. Well, the

         10  point is they are not going to do it. It's a brand

         11  new plant. They are going to farm it out to Philly

         12  and they are going to farm it out to Ballston Spa,

         13  which is a huge plant. It is a whole lot of

         14  trucking.

         15                 They put the unions in a position of

         16  low bidding, saying we can do it for 25 cents a

         17  pound, you are doing it for more than twice that.

         18  And the Kramer Study that Mr. Robles referred to, in

         19  1995 dollars, says it can be done for 50, 55 cents a

         20  pound. So they are putting the unions in the

         21  position of saying, yes, we are going to have a

         22  counter proposal, we can do it for 26, 25, it can't

         23  be done.

         24                 So they are putting us in a losing

         25  game to start with. So, we have to come at this from
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          2  a humanitarian point of view and also the critical

          3  impact on the community, critical impact of not the

          4  200 workers, but maybe over 1,000 family members and

          5  relatives of these workers who would be affected.

          6                 The point was made by my colleague

          7  Mr. Illery, isn't there anything to be said for

          8  cleaning and disinfecting linens on the first floor

          9  at Brooklyn Central Laundry and sending the finished

         10  product upstairs to Kings County Hospital or down

         11  the Street to WoodHull. The logistics and the

         12  ultimate patient care speak in favor of keeping

         13  Brooklyn Central Laundry and upgrading it, not

         14  shipping it out.

         15                 New Jersey Governor Christie Todd

         16  Whitman rejected contractual arrangements whereby

         17  excess New York City garbage from the Freshkills

         18  Landfill in Staten Island be treated in that state.

         19  Now it appears that the City intends to send her

         20  AIDS-infected and blood-soaked sheets through the

         21  back door to be handled by semi-skilled, minimum

         22  wage workers, and what if there was an accident, who

         23  pays? Mr. White pointed that out. I can reiterate

         24  that. Who pays?

         25                 Yes, there is a cost in labor by
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          2  outsourcing Angelica. I don't think anybody in his

          3  right sense of mind wants to pay a decent living

          4  wage. You can't argue with that.

          5                 Our sister local up in Buffalo where

          6  Angelica had a laundry plant organized that, took it

          7  from a sweetheart kind of a union up there,

          8  organized it, they have a health plan now where they

          9  didn't before and cleaned up that plant, but that

         10  was an eyesore.

         11                 The price that ultimately must be

         12  paid far exceeds anything projected in the neatly

         13  type low bid proposal.

         14                 And something else that occurred to

         15  me during the discussions here today, Local 832, our

         16  local, also represents supervisors at the huge

         17  laundry facility on Riker's Island. There are no

         18  Local 420 members there. Who do you have there? You

         19  have prisoners under our supervision doing laundry.

         20                 Suppose for the sake of argument that

         21  we win the philosophical debate with the City saying

         22  that we should not source to New Jersey, let's keep

         23  it in town, let's bid at home. Consider the

         24  possibility, and it might be a wild one, why not

         25  increase the facility on Riker's Island and have the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  prisoners do it for nothing? Think about that. They

          3  are already doing mens and women's shelter laundry,

          4  unbeknownst to maybe Local 420, unbeknownst to me

          5  until recently. They are trying to sneak it in the

          6  back door.

          7                 So, this is the kind of thing that

          8  you should be aware of. You may win the battle and

          9  lose the war.

         10                 Ladies and gentlemen, I thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         13  much. I appreciate you all for coming to testify.

         14                 What we are going to be doing now is

         15  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry,

         18  Council Member Reed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Chair. With my tongue in my cheek, you can

         21  understand that when you are talking about being the

         22  low man on the totem poll over there, but when you

         23  are the freshman at the table, boy, they get you

         24  bouncing back and forth.

         25                 But seriously, in terms of the
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          2  testimony, I don't know who can answer this

          3  question, can you -- and you mentioned in your

          4  answer in terms of Rikers Island, but does anybody

          5  know what other laundries are of comparable size to

          6  Brooklyn Central Laundry, whether they are private

          7  or public that exist here in the City?

          8                 MR. OTT: There are several in the

          9  private sector, in fact some of them are union

         10  represented, but the point was made before, not

         11  solely a question of size.

         12                 The workers at this facility deal

         13  with contaminated laundry. There are a lot of

         14  laundries that wouldn't take that on because of

         15  their other clients and they wouldn't want it

         16  labeled contaminated. So, there is a question of who

         17  in fact is the responsible bidder that would take

         18  it. This facility exists for a very clear reason,

         19  there is a specialty operation, it requires a lot of

         20  skill and a lot of careful planning of the work. So,

         21  it's not just that question. But there may be a

         22  question of size, there are others who would take it

         23  but they couldn't do this work.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand.

         25  But in terms of the capacity, let's put it in terms
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          2  of capacity to do this, recognizing the unique

          3  requirements of this, are there other laundry --

          4                 MR. OTT: I will have to get back to

          5  you on the specifics. I think there is one I know of

          6  but I am not sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.

          8                 Do, am I understanding that -- I

          9  guess what I am also trying to understand is, the

         10  hotels and such and other industries that have large

         11  requirements for linen you are saying would want to

         12  keep these two separated, is that what you are

         13  telling me?

         14                 MR. OTT: I believe they would.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And do we know

         16  what kind of money would be involved in terms of the

         17  ball park for the -- well, let me finish the

         18  question here. For the reinvestment, in terms of you

         19  said that this plant is antiquated and needs an

         20  upgrading; do we have some ball park figure on what

         21  would be required?

         22                 MR. OTT: I believe DC 37 has those

         23  figures.

         24                 What they have done, starting in '92

         25  there was a series of requests from the plant, the
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          2  specific projects to be done, which were not met

          3  since '92. At the end of that process along comes

          4  this RFP. One begins to understand that there was a

          5  pattern of neglect on the part they knew there was

          6  certain things that needed to be done.

          7                 The truth of the matter is, if you

          8  look at how the workers kept up the level of

          9  production while the plant was consciously made more

         10  inefficient, they could have been taking in laundry

         11  from other places and assisting them. There is no

         12  reason why we couldn't have turned this into a

         13  growth possibility for the City, it is just bad

         14  management.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, that is

         16  the area that I am trying to get in.

         17                 We have some fiduciary

         18  responsibilities here, not just some, but we do

         19  ultimately on the Council, and so, yes, the cost in

         20  terms of jobs is important, particularly to the

         21  economy of the City but more in the personal sense

         22  to our own constituents that we are here to

         23  represent.

         24                 But part of my line of questioning is

         25  to try to find out if this reinvestment would
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          2  provide the City of an opportunity to turn this

          3  around and perhaps make this a money-making

          4  proposition for taking other kinds of linens.

          5                 MR. OTT: I mentioned in our testimony

          6  about the multiplier effect, one thing you have to

          7  remember about the workers that are paid at this

          8  facility, the money stays in the City. Often a lot

          9  of our job retention efforts in the City and the

         10  private sector, were designed to keep jobs $40,000

         11  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I don't mean to

         13  interrupt you --

         14                 MR. OTT: What I am saying is, if you

         15  add it all up, the investment in the facility is a

         16  damn good investment.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That's is the

         18  point that I am trying to find out.

         19                 MR. KJELLBERG: The specifics on how

         20  much it would cost my colleagues in DC 37's Research

         21  and Negotiation Department tell me they are working

         22  up those figures.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me again

         25  remind my colleagues, while I will not stop anyone
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          2  from asking questions, in fairness to people who

          3  have been here since it started, I have about six to

          4  ten people signed up to speak, so keep that in mind,

          5  okay?

          6                 Council Member Marshall.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I will be

          8  quick, and thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 You know, if I have ten shirts, maybe

         10  I only have to wash once a week. But if I have two

         11  shirts, I have to wash nearly every day. My question

         12  is, how much additionally laundry will we have to

         13  purchase because these delivery times are going to

         14  be much more stretched out?

         15                 Will our sick who are in the hospital

         16  simply have to stay in dirty bed linen longer?

         17                 We really could use the financial

         18  analysis of how much it will cost, because I have

         19  found that being in the Council that privatization

         20  is not cheaper. It is not cheaper. It is often when

         21  our committees get together behind a privatization

         22  effort, and we start figuring it up, even the people

         23  who come to represent the City tell us that it is

         24  not cheaper, so it would be very helpful if we could

         25  look into calculating some of these costs, true
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          2  costs of this privatization effort.

          3                 You see, for the stock market we are

          4  willing to spend millions of dollars to keep jobs in

          5  the City. These jobs need to be kept in the City

          6  too.

          7                 MR. OTT: Council Member, one point on

          8  that --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: If that

         10  could go to our Chairman, that would be very

         11  helpful.

         12                 MR. OTT: One thing that I think is

         13  vitally important, when these requests for proposals

         14  go out, those questions should have to be answered

         15  as part of the process, and often they are not.

         16                 I mean, you could throw a line into a

         17  request for proposal that says something very

         18  simple, a company must have X years experience, and

         19  you have effectively greased that contract to narrow

         20  it down to maybe one or two companies, just

         21  depending on how many years they are in the

         22  business, the request for proposal process is

         23  extremely loose and we should think about that.

         24  These questions for the taxpayer benefit should be

         25  answered, on the day that that goes out all the
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          2  costs should be defined to the City, then we know

          3  whether or not it is even a rational proposal.

          4                 Right now this is not a request for

          5  proposal, it's a request for profit and we should

          6  understand that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         10  gentlemen. Thank you very much.

         11                 We are going to be calling a group

         12  up.

         13                 MR. ORENGO:  Judy Wessler. Alfred

         14  Grant. Joseph Spealing.

         15                 Is Joseph Spealing here? Gregory

         16  Davis.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Judy, before you

         18  start and you introduce yourself, I just want to

         19  take the privilege of the Chair. You have the copy

         20  of the Preliminary Budget already?

         21                 The only reason I started with Judy

         22  is because I must tell you, I always have to say

         23  that ever since I became Chair of this Committee,

         24  the one person who is consistent on top of me with

         25  respect to the Health and Hospitals Corporation is
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          2  the Commission on Public Health Services. And I want

          3  to say that because sometimes because someone don't

          4  look like you and I, sometimes they do better than

          5  some of us, and I just had to say that.

          6                 So, Judy, it is always good to see

          7  you. It is always good because you are on top of

          8  things. Having said that, I am not taking away from

          9  anybody else, it is just that I deal with her

         10  constantly on the phone, at meetings, when she hears

         11  something she informs me, when I want to bounce

         12  things off, that is the person I use. I want to say

         13  that.

         14                 So, why don't we just introduce

         15  ourselves, and then proceed with the testimony.

         16                 MS. WESSLER: Judy Wessler, Commission

         17  on the Public Health System.

         18                 MR. DAVIS: Gregory Davis, a worker at

         19  Brooklyn Central Laundry.

         20                 MR. GRANT: Alfred Grant, Shop

         21  Steward, Local 420.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When you talk,

         23  push the mic so you are actually talking into it,

         24  because if not, it won't pick up.

         25                 Judy, go ahead.
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          2                 MS. WESSLER: Okay. I actually have

          3  prepared testimony but much of it has been said, so

          4  I will just make a few comments.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So long as you

          6  push the mic closer.

          7                 MS. WESSLER: Okay. How is that? Is

          8  that okay?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes.

         10                 MR. WESSLER: Good.

         11                 The Commission was actually formed in

         12  1991 to fight the privatization of the public

         13  hospitals and to work to strengthen the public

         14  health system, and we believe that the need for the

         15  public system is even more telling now with the

         16  growth and the number of uninsured, and that with

         17  the competitive market place taking over health

         18  services public system, with a mission to provide

         19  care to everyone regardless of the ability to pay is

         20  even more necessary today than it has been in the

         21  past.

         22                 This issue is about jobs and it is

         23  about labor but it is also about services, and it is

         24  about quality of care, and from community

         25  perspective which the commission comes from, we feel
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          2  very strongly that this is a very, very important

          3  issue.

          4                 The Central Brooklyn Laundry, it has

          5  been said over and again, and we will just add to

          6  it, we believe that with just 200 employees the

          7  Brooklyn Central Laundry does a really good job. We

          8  have talked to people in the hospitals and well

          9  laundered, sterile laundry gets to the facilities on

         10  a timely basis and that is really critical. You

         11  cannot provide health care services without laundry

         12  done well and without the uniform. So the service

         13  provided is really critical.

         14                 City Council has been strong on the

         15  issue of privatization. The City Council has been

         16  there on the issue of Coney Island Hospital.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Against.

         18                 MS. WESSLER: I am sorry, against. You

         19  are absolutely correct.

         20                 The City Council was against the

         21  privatization of Coney Island and it is very

         22  interesting that there is a parallel. Coney Island,

         23  the Mayor chose a for-profit company from another

         24  state, Primary Health Systems, which was

         25  incorporated in Delaware and located in Pennsylvania
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          2  and had hospitals in Ohio, and just like Angelica,

          3  Primary Health Systems has been in terrible trouble.

          4  They have been in financial trouble, they have been

          5  in trouble in terms of the services that they are

          6  providing. So, there is a very strong parallel and

          7  that has got to be looked at.

          8                 Just to finish, the need for HHC

          9  services is too critical to be sacrificed for the

         10  Mayor's political ambitions. We urge that the

         11  Council work with the unions and Community

         12  organizations to defeat this proposal.

         13                 I want to say that the excitement in

         14  this room today and the commitment and the talk

         15  about working together is not something that I have

         16  seen in being a City Council watcher in a long time

         17  and it is very, very exciting and hopefully it will

         18  really happen and go on. Hearing the District

         19  Council 37 is back is very exciting.

         20                 And just to finish, one way to get

         21  more money into the Health and Hospitals

         22  Corporation, which we will be bugging the City

         23  Council about, particularly the Health Committee,

         24  over and over again before the budget, is to use the

         25  tobacco settlement money that is coming to New York
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          2  City as part of the State settlement. There will be

          3  a lot of money coming into the City over a 25-year

          4  period, and just as people are saying that the money

          5  going to the state from the tobacco settlement

          6  should be used for health care, as the Assembly

          7  Speaker said, it was gained because of people's

          8  scarred lungs, money coming into the City from the

          9  tobacco settlement, at least a portion of it, must

         10  also be used for health care services and there is

         11  no better way to spend it then for the City to

         12  finally do what they are legally obliged to do,

         13  which is to pay for uninsured care that is provided

         14  in the Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         15                 And hopefully with enough money

         16  coming into HHC, they should not have to come up

         17  with bad proposals, like the one that we are faced

         18  with today.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         21                 MR. DAVIS: Once again, my name is

         22  Gregory Davis, I am a worker at Brooklyn Central

         23  Laundry. I have been working there for 15 years. I

         24  have done some of just about everything there. The

         25  third floor is where all the dirty work come in and
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          2  they stated that the work, you have a lot of blood,

          3  needles, all kinds of, like some different body

          4  parts. Thank God, it was so many times I had almost

          5  got stuck by needles putting your hands in the work

          6  not knowing what is going to come out of it, and

          7  just coming real close to being stuck by so many

          8  needles, but through God I didn't get stuck.

          9                 Different hospitals, like WoodHull,

         10  the work comes in with like a lot of blood in it. I

         11  mean the blood is so think it is like jello and, you

         12  know, you have to be real careful. It's a lot of

         13  dangerous stuff. A lot of work comes in, it has

         14  maggots in it. You know, as you pick sheets out, you

         15  have to look down and make sure there are no maggots

         16  on you. It's a hard job but through God, I thank God

         17  that I have the job, and I thank you all for

         18  standing in the little guys' corner and I believe

         19  that the victory is already won.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. GRANT: My name is Alfred Grant, I

         22  am a shop steward for 420.

         23                 I want to say I got a little

         24  gratitude today for President Butler and Lee

         25  Saunders. I believe he is a man we can count on
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          2  because it is evident by all of the union presidents

          3  here today.

          4                 I have a little concern, and the

          5  concern is that if we look at the ceiling and we see

          6  "the government of the people, for the people, by

          7  the people," that is meaningless to me if I believe

          8  that this government doesn't do anything right for

          9  the people.

         10                 I believe that if it is not broke,

         11  don't try to fix it. The Brooklyn Central Laundry

         12  has been working fine for years. People who work

         13  there are dedicated workers, and if you want to know

         14  about the economic impact to them and a community,

         15  just multiply each member, each employee by five.

         16  When you think about the medical coverage, even

         17  think about the low pay that we already get because

         18  we are doing twice the work and we are doing it just

         19  as good as anybody else, just think about a person

         20  who is making less than $25,000 a year, what they

         21  are doing with that money, they are sending their

         22  kids to school, they are buying clothes, they are

         23  putting food on the table. Jobs in New York City

         24  should stay just here in New York City.

         25                 We shouldn't have to let the Mayor
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          2  and the Administration decide that downsizing and

          3  privatization is the answer for today. If we are

          4  moving toward the Year 2000 and we are looking for a

          5  new world order, then I believe what we need to do

          6  is educate our own and train our own.

          7                 About a year ago, Luis Marcos had a

          8  public meeting in North Central Bronx Hospital. He

          9  handed out a pamphlet showing the great strides that

         10  HHC is making. In these hospitals brand new machines

         11  and everything is coming in, but the people are

         12  going out.

         13                 The thing that should be looked at

         14  is, if you are building up a place, what are you

         15  building up for? To retrain us, to do something good

         16  for us who already work there? Are you fixing it up

         17  to give it away?

         18                 If they can do this to Brooklyn

         19  Central Laundry, what they have already done to

         20  Neponsit, then we at every other Health and

         21  Hospitals Corporation seem to be next on the block.

         22                 Now what we need to do, we need to

         23  change our names to John P. Public, and Susan P.

         24  Public and people on our lower echelon, like myself,

         25  a worker who pulled bloody linen from the ORs that
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          2  are diseased, that we send to these people, and we

          3  know they are diseased because a nurse says put on

          4  extra gloves there is fluid contamination here.

          5  Blood contamination here. And you know what? Some of

          6  those things don't go out in red bags.

          7                 So, I would like to end with this,

          8  that we need to wake up and we need the full support

          9  of the City Council and everybody else in the City

         10  not even connected with HHC.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I just want

         15  you to know that we are hearing you. We are hearing

         16  you. We have the message.

         17                 MR. ORENGO: Samuel William. Roselle

         18  Boston.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, would you

         20  identify yourself for the record, and again, as I

         21  was told by my dear mother, may she rest in peace,

         22  ladies first.

         23                 MS. BOSTON: I am Roselle Boston, from

         24  Brooklyn Central Laundry, and I have worked for

         25  Brooklyn Central Laundry for 38 years, and I sit
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          2  here to tell you for 38 years we have been fighting

          3  for one thing or another and I believe in my heart

          4  that we will continue to fight but I would just like

          5  to say, Brooklyn Central Laundry has been a job for

          6  me. I have put two kids through college, my husband

          7  and I, we bought a home, and I am getting ready to

          8  retire, but it is not all about me. It is not why I

          9  am here today. I am here today because I am

         10  concerned about my brothers and sisters who need a

         11  job after I retire.

         12                 And I would just like to say to Mr.

         13  Giuliani, he spoke to us once in a town hall meeting

         14  about every person should have a job, and he wanted

         15  to take people off of welfare, but I find it hard

         16  for that to happen if he is going to privatize

         17  Brooklyn Central Laundry.

         18                 And I would just like to say to Mr.

         19  Giuliani, we invite him to Brooklyn Central Laundry,

         20  and I wish he would come and see what we are doing

         21  there. Because if he would come, he would really

         22  know what we are doing. But I will tell him, we will

         23  fight, we will fight, we will fight and we will not

         24  stop fighting, because I believe God didn't give us

         25  a job to let Giuliani or anybody else take it away
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          2  from us.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          5                 MR. WILLIAM: My name is Sam William,

          6  Jr. I also work at Brooklyn Central Laundry. I have

          7  been working there for 23 years and I am a shop

          8  steward there also.

          9                 I have come to let this Committee

         10  know that I was also stuck by a needle at Brooklyn

         11  Central Laundry, and I also found a fetus in a bag

         12  at Brooklyn Central Laundry, and we called the

         13  proper authorities down here, we had the people from

         14  the precincts and the people from the malls that

         15  come there, but they did an efficient job, and I

         16  have been working there for 23 years and I have

         17  three kids and if I lose my job I won't be able to

         18  take care of my kids. So, all I can say to this

         19  Committee is to fight hard for us to keep our jobs,

         20  because we all need our jobs.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 I have no more slips, I am assuming

         25  then that nobody else is going to testify. Before I
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          2  close these hearings, let me extend the courtesy to

          3  my colleague, Council Member Una Clarke, and then I

          4  will have closing remarks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me thank

          6  you, Mr. Chairman, for holding today's hearing, both

          7  as a colleague and as a friend from Brooklyn.

          8                 The Brooklyn Central Laundry, as

          9  everybody here knows, is in the 40th District that I

         10  represent, I represent every person who has anything

         11  to do with that community and I do it with equal

         12  vigor. When it comes to jobs, I know it is the

         13  lifeblood of every community, every man and woman

         14  needs to put bread and butter on the table to

         15  educate their children so that every generation of

         16  our children become better than the one before them,

         17  I expect my two children that are born and raised

         18  right here on Midwood Street to do better than I

         19  have done. So I am not a stranger to the community,

         20  I am over at Windgate every other week to make sure

         21  that the youngsters who come there get a good

         22  education. I know the community well, I know that

         23  this is a stabilizing force to the community. I got

         24  my education next door at the League School, where

         25  all those very handicapped persons are coming in and
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          2  out of, as a teacher I taught over there, so I know

          3  everything about the Central Laundry, and it serves

          4  all of the hospitals in the City of New York, and we

          5  know that you have done a good job and we cannot

          6  allow you through government neglect in upgrading

          7  and making sure that that facility is efficient to

          8  now privatize those jobs so that I will have to

          9  worry where my neighbors are going to get their

         10  bread and butter. So, count on me, I am going to go

         11  to the max on this one, and during the budget

         12  process if we need to hold up the budget until this

         13  issue is addressed, as minority members of the City

         14  Council, I am going to hold everybody's foot to the

         15  fire because our families need the same bread and

         16  butter everybody else's family has, but I will not

         17  walk away from you at any point in time in the

         18  struggle. So, count on me, and I know my colleague

         19  with whom I am working, that what he did for Youth

         20  Services was unheard of, he is now on Health and I

         21  know health care is going to be unheard of once he

         22  sits at the helm of health care he is going to make

         23  sure HHC is accountable to every employee and to

         24  every facility, and so, Mr. Chairman, I want to

         25  thank you both for your friendship, for your advice,
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          2  because every now and then when I get crazy, he has

          3  got to hold me back and tell me, Una, you are going

          4  too fast now, they will cut your feet off. So, he

          5  saves my feet all the time before they buckle right

          6  under me.

          7                 So, I thank you both for the

          8  friendship, for the mentorship, and for the

          9  commitment that you have for all New Yorkers, but

         10  particularly when it comes to HHC facilities.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, I have no

         12  other slips, let me just perhaps make some

         13  observations, if I may.

         14                 First of all, let me begin by saying

         15  that I am extremely pleased that once again after 14

         16  years that I have been in this Council, that a union

         17  that was a household name, that was a union that not

         18  only was the people's union, but anyone who got

         19  elected could not be elected without the people's

         20  union. It is good to see that the people are coming

         21  together to remember how we got where we got. So, I

         22  must say that, and I was pleased to see all your

         23  sister locals, especially the presidents, when I see

         24  them at other issues, sends a clear message that a

         25  house divided never stands. So I want to commend you
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          2  for that.

          3                 Second, let me say that there was a

          4  reason why I became Chairman of this Committee.

          5  Because many of us who grew up in New York City,

          6  although I was born in Puerto Rico, when I was

          7  growing up in Williamsburg, it wasn't WoodHull

          8  Hospital, it was Greenpoint Hospital. It wasn't all

          9  of these fancy dancy clinics that were all stepping

         10  all over each other, it was the Department of

         11  Health, Health Clinic on Morjer Street. And because

         12  I was one of those who could not afford it, and I

         13  didn't have that special card that everybody goes

         14  around with now, the only place that I had the

         15  luxury to go to get my immunizations, to get my

         16  chest x-rays and what have you, was the Health

         17  Clinic, and God forbid if I ever really needed a

         18  hospital, it was Greenpoint Hospital.

         19                 In my district Wood Hull Hospital was

         20  the promised hospital that we were supposed to be so

         21  proud of to receive the most modern health

         22  facilities that the whole world was supposed to come

         23  and see, and then they closed down Greenpoint and

         24  Cumberland Hospital.

         25                 So that I was concerned with the
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          2  direction this City and this Administration was

          3  moving, particularly when it comes to privatization.

          4                 No one has yet convinced me that

          5  privatization is better than what used to be which

          6  is the public health system. And until they do that,

          7  and I, so long as I preside, will not sit back and

          8  allow privatization unless you can justify it.

          9  Because I remember when we were growing up, every

         10  time they wanted to do something they would justify

         11  it. But every time they wanted to stop you from

         12  doing something they will tell you why it could not

         13  be done.

         14                 But I want to also remind you that

         15  the squeekie wheel gets the oil. It is not the

         16  rhetoric, it is not how nice I speak and how well I

         17  control that atmosphere, it is about how we as a

         18  people get together, and not just tell us what we

         19  should do, or tell us what you are going to do, it

         20  is about putting your money where your mouth is.

         21                 You cannot solely rely upon a union,

         22  because a union is only as good as its members. You

         23  cannot rely solely upon what some of us on this side

         24  said today as Council members, because the

         25  institution is only as good as the members remember
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          2  how they got here.

          3                 So, I want to end by reminding us, as

          4  a people, you don't have to like me, I don't have to

          5  like you, you don't have to like the way I dress, I

          6  don't have to like the way you dress, but we have a

          7  commonality, and that commonality is we are people

          8  of color, and regardless of whether you come from

          9  the south, or from Africa, or from the Caribbean,

         10  and it is not just Jamaica, it is also Puerto Rico,

         11  then you must understand that the reason why, and

         12  many of you went with it, term limits came in,

         13  because when I first came here in 1985, of 35

         14  members, only nine members were people of color.

         15  Today, we are 51 members, there are 23 members of

         16  color. So use the power that you have, because after

         17  the Year 2001, I don't know what this body is going

         18  to look like.

         19                 So, thank you, again, for coming out.

         20  And I repeat, to the union leadership, there are

         21  things you must follow through. If there are

         22  information and documentation, that has to be

         23  forwarded. And for the gentleman who was reminding

         24  me, because this is separate from what this issue

         25  is, let me be clear about this Chair and this
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          2  Committee. We are the overseers of the Health and

          3  Hospitals Corporation. If in your facilities you see

          4  things, you know, remember that famous -- although

          5  it was really George Bernard Shaw -- somebody who

          6  became a United States Senator and because of the

          7  name went to Bedford Stuyvesant and looked out and

          8  said, I see things the way they are and ask why; you

          9  dream of things that never were and ask why not, and

         10  it was said by Robert Kennedy. Well, you know

         11  something folks? You see something that you don't

         12  like, and you think as a God-fearing creature, that

         13  you should have the same, no more, no less, than

         14  someone else, then that is what this Committee is

         15  all about.

         16                 And my frustration, in all honesty,

         17  is that I am trying to really bring back this

         18  Committee to hold accountable not only HHC, the

         19  Department of Health who has walked away altogether

         20  from its responsibility, the Department of Mental

         21  Health and Mental Retardation which is in better

         22  shape but if we don't keep an eye on it, it can go

         23  from good to bad again. But without you, then it is

         24  meaningless what we say.

         25                 So, don't think that this hearing is
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          2  the end, it depends upon you. If you go out of here

          3  saying we had our day, we said what we had to and

          4  that's it - then you know what? Comes July 1, kiss

          5  it good-bye. But if we work together between now and

          6  the budget, I don't get mad, I get even. Because

          7  when you have God with you, I don't care who is in

          8  front of you.

          9                 So, I have to say that because you

         10  have to understand, some of us here, we are not here

         11  to make friends, we are colleagues, we are here to

         12  work with you, but I am here to represent and I will

         13  always, always have as number one the people that I

         14  represent. That is what we have to do with

         15  everybody.

         16                 So, thank you, again. I hope that

         17  this is not the first, nor the last, and if we work

         18  together you will see that what we saw today will

         19  come back.

         20                 Seeing no more business before this

         21  Committee, I adjourn this hearing.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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